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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’

REPORT

The Board of Directors and the President & Chief Executive Officer of Radisson
Hospitality AB, corporate registration number 556674-0964, hereby submit the
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year 2020.

Operations

Radisson Hosgitahty AB ("Rachisson™ 15 a
hospitality company managing hoteis and
asscis owned by third parties. Radisson
operates the prands Radisson Collection,
Radisson Blu, Radisson, Radisson RED,
Radisson Indwiduals, Park Plaza, Park Inn by
Radisson and Country Inn & Suites by
Radisson.

In October 2020, Radisson became the
owner of the brands in the pertfoho
worldwide, following a transaction with its
sister company Radisson Hospitaiity, Inc.
and its subsidanes

Strategies

The hotels in Radisson's portfolio are cither
opcrated by Radissen itscll under a |case
contract, by providing management SCrvices
for a hotel owner under a managemant
contract, or by a separate operator using
one of the brands under a franchise
contract. Radisson's strategy 1S to grow
with an asset-nght approach, balancing
management and franchisc contracts with
selected lease contracts. Management and
franchise contracts offer a higher orofit
margin and more stable income strearrs and
lease contracts allows Radisson to complete
the presence in mature markets.

Covid-19 Impact & Going Concern

The cutbreak of Covid-19 in the beginning
nf 2020 has  signfica-tly  adversely
impacted and disruped the Dusiness,
ncludng the financial performance and
condition, oparatng results end cash flows
This disruption 1s expected to continue into
the near future.

The ca~demic has had significart
ropercussions acress regional and global
ecoramies and inancial markets Kad-ssen
has been, and expects to continue to be,

negalively affected by governme-tal
regulations and travel advisor esto fight the
pandemic.

T-e effecis of i~e pancemic on the notel
ndustry  are  unprecedented.  Global
demand for lodging has been drastically
rcduced and  occupancy  levels have
reached histong lows Singe March 2020,
e Compary Nas exper enced a sigmificant
decine in  occupancy and RevPAR
associated with Covid-19. The scale and
duration of this pandemic reman uncertan
but are expected to further impact our
business

The Beardof Directors and Management
has taken a number of measures to
m tigate the financial mpact on both profit
ard cash flow of the significant drop in
revenue. These measures include, but are
not lirited to, cotimization of staff levels.
rent renegotiaticns, and apphcation for
government grants.

Radisson’s credit facilities and available
liquidity as of December 31, 2020 are
presented in the section “Liquidity risks” in
Note 4 The effects of Covid-19 1n 2020
have sigrificantly 1moared  avalacle
liquidity. Through the Group's and the
shareholders’ direct actions, inctuding a
support letter 1ssued by a related party,
liquidity ‘or the next twelve months is
secured, and the Group's continued
operations are not threatened.

Based on the circumstances as
descr bed above, the firancial staterents
are prepared on the assumption that the
entity 1s a going concern.

Income Statement

MEUR 2020 2019
Rever.e 332° 9993
Other ircome 0t —
EBITDAR -231 3406
EBITDA -669 ‘652
EBIT -2178 732
Prof -{los-1 ‘ar toe your -2280 220
EBITDAR margir —6 9% 34 1%
EBITDA margir -20"% 16 5%
EBIT rmargir —65 8% 73%

Revenue decreased by MEUR 667 2 (-66.8%)
to MEUR 3321 The decreasc 1s duc to the
negative impact of the Cowd-19 outbreak.
Maost of the hotels were partislly closed
durng year and hotels that were kept open
have operatcd with & low occupancy n
gencral

EBITDA decreased by MEUR 2321 to
MEUR —66.9. The results were severcly
impacted by the dedrase n revenue
Howover, the decline was slowed down
d.e o tre ‘eoxible cost base and the
measures taken by managemaent, including,
but not Wmied to, furloughs, rent
renogtiations  and applications  for
government grants

The EBITDA margin  was
compared to 16.1% previous year

EBIT decreased by MZIUR 291 0 tc MEUR
-217.8 In addition to the EBITDA decrease,
results ao impactes by VEUR 54 0 higher
costs for wrie-downs of fixed assels
Please sec Note & for additienal details.

The EBIT margin was —65 6% compared
to 7.3% previous year,

2eofitfloss) far the yos- decreased oy
MEUR 250 Oto MEUR -228 0 Insdditicn to
the decrease in EBIT, results arc impacted
by nigher firancizl costs, due 1o saditional
borrowings and termination of the high
yielc bond, parly offset by lower taxes

-20.1%
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Balance Sheet end of 2020

31Dec 31Dec
MELUR 2020 2019
Total asse's 1498 3 *194.3
Ne:working capital —15" 4 —585
Net cash {ret deb?) -782" -30
Equity 15 488

The non-current asscts Increased by
MEUR G181 and amourtedto MEURY, 294 8
Theincrease is mainly duc to the acquistion
of the Radisson brands (see further “Other
Events” below), additional investments in
the global IT platform and capitalksed
deferred tax on losses, pally offset o

write-downs

Net working capital, excluding cash and
cash equivalents, but including current tax
asscts and liabiities, was MEUR —151.4 st the
end of the year, compared to MEUR 158 5
n the beginning of the year.

Compared to the beginning of the year,
oguty decreased by MEUR 1473 10 MEUR
1.5, which i1s mainly due to the loss for the
penod of MELR 228 0. nartly ofset by a
capial contribution received from  the
shareholdars of VEUR 85.0.

Cash Flow

Cask flow from operatinns, before change n
working capita, amowntad o MFUR -71.3, 8
decrease of MEUR 2201, which is duc to the
decrease in FRITDA, partly cffset by less lax
paid Cash flew from change n working
capilal amounted o MEWR 479, comzarad o
MEUR 51 ng,{ year.

Cash flow used in iNvest~g activites was
MEUR 5852 higher compared to last year
and amounted to MEUR —673.8. The increase
15 mainky due to the acquistion of the Radisson
brands (see further “Other Events” below)
ang investments i the global IT platform
and Prizeotel partly offser by less nvestments
nthe portfolio of lcased properties.

Cash fow fo~ financng activities
amouned to MEUR 5083 compared to
MEUR -~757 last yecar. Proceeds from
borrowings frranly from related parties)
and zapital contribution are partly offset by
repayments of the high yeid bend and
loase labiites as well as payment of
nterest.

Liquidity

At the end of the penod, the company had
MEUR 334 (2336) r cash arc cash
equivalents. The total credit facilmes
amounted to MEUR 5.0 {25.0), of which
MEUR 0.5 (24.7) was unutihsed per thc end
of the year.

Other Events

In October 2020, Radisson became the
owner of the Radisson brands worldwide,
following a transaction with s sister
company Radisson Hospitality, Inc. and its
subsidaries The acquisition value of the
scquired intangible assets ameunted to
MEUR 4860 Please see MNote 17 for
additional details.

Subsequent Events

Per cnd of February 2021, Radisson
acguired fromits sister company Radisson
Hospitality, Inc. a group of companies
responsible for the operation of the
Radisson brand n Asia Pacific Incluced in
the transaction was also a portfolio of
hotel management contracts, directly
owned by Radisson Hospitahty, Inc., as
well a5 internal borrowings. The acquisition
value of the acquired assets amoumnts to
MZUR 105 7 The tra~saciion was firanced
through sharenoldars’ loans and
centributions,

Risk Management
Radisson 1 oxposed to gperatonal and
financial rsks 11 the day-to-cay rumming
of the business. Operational risks occur
mainly 1in runnming the hotels locally but also
inciude implementation nsks rolated to
margin  enhancing  nkiatives  launched
centrally. Such iniiatives include, inter alia,
gaming  market  share,  cost cuting
programmes, room  growth and  asset
management actnities related to  the
existing pertfolhio. Financial  nsks  anse
ceczuse Radisson has external firancng
needs and opcrates in a number of foreign
currencles. To aliow iocal hotels to fully
fzcus on thesr operatio-s, fing~cal risk
managemen: s ccntralised as far as
possible to group management, governed
by Radissen's Finance Paolcy.  The
objecuves of Radisson's Risk Management
can be summarised as follows:
< gnsLre thet te nsks ang serefits of new
~vestmerts and financizl com~irme-s
are in ine with Radisson's Finance Policy,
«reduce business cycle nisks through brand

diversily, geograpTic diversification and by
increasing the proportion of managed and
franchised contracts in the portfelio;

- carefully evaluate investments in high nisk
regions and secck returns that exceed
nigher cost of capital In such regions;

« protect brand vatues through strategic
control and operational policics,

«review and assess Radisson’s insurance
programmes on an on-going basis,

-review and assess Safety & Secunty
procedures.

Opetrational Risks

Market Risks

The general ma‘ket, econoric, financal
conditions and the development of RevPAR
in the markets where Radisson operaics
are the ~ost mportant factors miluene mg
the company's earnings. As the hotel
business s, by its nature, cyclical, a recession
puts Industry RevPAR under pressure. In
order to balance the market related risks,

Racisson uses three diferent coentract
types for its hotcls

-the company Icascs hotel properties
and operates the hotels as s own

opcrations;

« 1hc company managos a hotel on behalf
of a hotel owner and recewes @
managecrent fee, and

« the company franchises one of the brands
to an indepaendent owner and receives a
franchise foe.

The management and franchise modcls are

the most resilient while the leased model s

mere volatle ard sensitve o market fluc-

tuations

Radisson's client basc 1s well distributed
with ca B0% business clients in a narmal
year Radissen s not dependent on a small
number of cusiomers or any particular
industry.

Radisson ope-ates & well defined multi-
brand portol o of hotels covering cifferent
segments of the market and operates world
wide

Political and Country Risks

Radisson’s growth focus includes emerging
markets such as Russia & other CIS
countries, the Middlc East and Africa. Some
of the countnes in these markets have a
higher political nsk than thosc in the more
mature markets In order to mitigate the
pohtical rnsks, Radisson only operates
under management and franchise contracts
with Irites or min al “ing-cial exposu-e i



these markets.

Radisson acknowledges that terronsm as
well as other (ssues such as increased
tensicns between countnes, scaial unrest,
labour disruption, outbreak of diseascs,
crime and weakness of local infrastructure
(including legal systems) can be threats to
safe and secure hotcl cperations at certain
times In certain locations. Radisson’'s ability
to perform or discharge its obhgations may
also be mpacted due o acts of
governments or other international bodies,
such as impesition of sanctions. With the
aid  of oxternal expertise,  threat
assessments are continuously carned out
ard hgiels ~otflad If a possible matenal
change to ther threat situation 15 detected.

Litigation Risks

Radisson 15 exposed to the nsk of igation
from guests, customers, potential partners,
supphers, emgployees, regulatory
authortes, franchisees and/or the owners
of hotels leased or managed by Radisson.

Strategy Execution Risks

Radisson's future growth and abihty to
acoleve the efficiency benefits anticpated
by Radisson will depend on the successful
executton of the company's business
strategy, including the implementation of
assct management intiatives amed at
opumising the hotel portfcho and other
measdres to improve operational efficiency
and  pro-filabilty  Raosson's coilly 1o
implement its business strategy and expand
Its business 1s subject to a variety of factors,
many of which are beyond Radisson's
control, including, but net hmited  to,
Radisson’s abiity to!

«terminate lease contracts or othcrwise
renegetate more faveorable terms, as
well as extend profitable catracts,

grow 1ts fee-based business by gradually
increasing the number of managed
and franchised hotels N proporuen
to leased hotels;

maintain and strengthen its position as
a provider of high-qualty service and
haspitality preducts;

reglisc cstimated cost savings in the
manner anticipated; and

anfance  operational efficierces a-d
improve averall profitability
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Other potertial nsks dentified relatec to
the exccution of Radisson’s strategy are,

» New brands, products or services that are
launched in the future may not be
as successful as anucipated, which
could have a matenal adverse effect on
Radisson's busness, financal condition
or results of operations.

Radisson's strategy to grow in emerging
markets may strain its managerial, ope-
rational and control systems.

Risks ansing out of Radisson's plan to
maintain and upgrade 1ts portfolio of
leased hotcls.

Hotel openings i Radisson's oxisting
development pipchne may be delaycd
or not result In new hotels, which could

adversely  afecl  Radissons  growih
prospects.
« Fallures in, matenal damage o, or

disruptions in the information technology
systems used by Radisson, as well as
fallure to keep pace with developments in
technology, could have a material adverse
cffect or Radissor's busmness, finanoal
condition and results of operations

Partner Risks

Radisson does not own the rcal estate
ir whicr the compary operates hotels. The
company cooporates with a large number of
hotel owners and real cstate owness and Is
not dependent on any particular partner. With
a business model focusing on managing its
parmers’ assets, Radisson 15 dependent on
these partners’ oceratioral a—d
capabiltics. Radisson is responsible for
maintaining assets used 1 good order and
anydefaults mayhave fina~cialco~sequences
for the company.

firancial

Employee Related Risks
The employee turnover in the hospitality
ndustry 15 relatwely  high. Independent
assesments show that the job satisfaction
among employees n Radisson 15 high
compared to the industry.

I 15 zecomi~g mcreasingly aifficult o
source key talent due to the competitive
nature of the business, the high mobility
requirements of the business and ihe
potential safcty concerns N emerging
markets In addition, cost pressures for
improved hving wages arc increasing

Financial Risks

Radissan’s financial nsk mar~agement 13
governed by a finarce policy approved by
the Board of Directors. According to the
inance policy,
function of the company systematically
monitors anc evsluaies the financial nisks,
such as foreign exchange, interest rate,
credit, hquidity and market nsks. Measures
amed at managing and handing these
fnanc al nsks at tre local ~otel lovel are
contamed
parameters and guidelines set forth in
Radisson's Cperal'ng
routines and delegation authorisation with
regard o financal nsk managemert ao

tre corporae weascry

~ a finance manual with the

firance  zoboy.

cocumented 10 this fimrance manual Tor
further :nfarmation about these (dentfied
risks zlease see Note 4

Share Capital

The share capital amounts to TEUR 11,626,
corresponding to 174,388,857 registered
sharcs There 1s only one class of shares
1ssued.

Articles of Association

The aructes of association of the company
do not include any additional conditions
compared o thosc of the Swedsh
Companies Act rcgarding changes of the
articles of asso-ciation

Change of Control Clauses
Certain lease and management contracts
entered inte by members of the company
contain change of control clauses in relation
to such members or therr parents lcading to
possible changes n commercial terms and/
or parly terminaucn None of these clauses
refer 1o a change of control of the parent
company, Radisson Hospitality AB.

The agreements for Radissen's long-
term committed creditlines carry customary
clauscs related to change of control

Proposed appropriation of Earnings
Non-restricted reserves n the Paront
Company avallable for dvidend are (TEUR):

Srare premium reserve 254,119

Prof.: brouqght ‘orwird 86,03
Prof *toss| ror b e yoar —994
Total 339138

The Board of Directors proposes to the
Annual General Mecting 2021 that no
dividend 1s to be palc for the finrancial year
2020 and that the distnbutable funds of
TEUR 339138 are browght forward.

Responsible Business

Radisson's ambitrous and award-winning
Responsible Business programme started
n 1989. The programme’'s three core arcas
ensure that we carc for people, the
community and our planet and act in an
cthical way: Think People ~ Canng about
peeple in our hotels and value chain; Think
Community — Meaningful contnbutions o
communities around the world, Think Planet
— A better planet for all. Reducing our carbon
footpnint, cnergy, water and wasto.

Morc detalls and performance indicators
of our Responsible Business programmce are
publshed 1n the vyearly Responsible
Business Report The Responsible Busingss
Report 2020 offers a deta led descriplion o°
Radisson's Rosponsible Business
programme  and can  be found on
radissonhotels.com

Parent Company
The Parent Company was registercd in
early 2005 and the primary purpose of the
company 1S to act as a holding company for
the Group’s investments in hatel operating
subsidanes 10 vanous  countries.  In
addition to this main activity, the Parent
Company alsc serves as a shared service
centre for hotels in the Nordics The man
revenues of the company are internal fces
charged to the hotels in the Nordics for the
related administrative services provided
by the shared service centre Apart from
the costs related o the acuwvines of the
shared service centre, the Parent Company
also bears other lhsting and corporate
related costs

Risks and uncertainties in the business
for the Group arc described in the Board of
D -ector's report “or the Grousz. The firancial
position  of the Parent  Company
5 aeperdent on the finarcial oosit on
anz development of the subsidiaries.
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FINANCIAL REPORTS

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

MEUR (except stated otherwise) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Income statement

Reverue® 332° 999 3 955 2 9673 96" 2
Ctherrcome ‘o — — —
EBITDAR™ -23° 3406 3254 3146 3146
EBITDA™ -669 65 2 '03.7 821 753
EBIT” -2178 732 36 47 30
Finarciatircome & experse, re; -6'4 -394 =29 20 -03
Prof tfcr the yes- ~2280 220 36 44 264

Balance sheet

Balarce sheet 0l 1,498 3 1794 3 7503 534 5025
Total eguity atirinuiable o eguity olders of the paren: 1.5 ‘48 8 2560 2537 2657
Toial investmerts (;argible and irtargible mvesimer:s) 5664 ‘49 8L 3 738 n
Cash flow

Casn haw rar operatTg act vl os -234 ‘538 1273 124 339
Cash flaow oz mvest nyg sctaitics -6738 -8B 5 -86.2 737 -83"
Cash How rom Irancing act vt es 4224 -7’57 2076 08 6T

Financial key figures®

EBITDAR Margir. % -6.9 340 339 325 327
EBITDA Margim, % —201 65 ‘08 85 83
EBIT Margir, % -656 73 33 “5 03
Returr on capital employed, % =20.2 258 285 ‘B9 20"
Returr or equity, % -303¢6 ‘61 "4 t7 ‘03

Operational key figures

Number of hoteis ! 403 387 380 369 363
~umber of rooms” 86.545 84,842 8333 8132 80,502
Number of employees” 2270 4248 4,43" 5,033 5,'42
Qceuparcy %2 ° 30 332 67 a6 65
RevPAR EUR?™ 26 73 7 70 69

1} Inciudes eascd, Tanaged and franchised notels 1 operat on

2y Including Tanaged and leascd nolc's 17 pperatonn

3) Including cansobdated oatit s { cascd hate s and adm nistrat ve uns)
4} - 55 Meas eode Lonoed

R Micau e - Al e a ve

S Wedaare see ot Soae 48
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Forthe Year bndeg Degemaer 31

TEUR (except for share refated data} Notes 2020 2019
Revenue ¥ 332,092 9939.326
Oirerircome 8 10,736 -
Casts of goods sold fo- Food & Beverage ard other relagied experses 9 -14.692 -46,789
Persarnel cgs:and contrac: iabowr 80 —i73.45" —3'5.063
O:rer operairg exparses " —168.087 —282738
Insurerce of properies ard properiy tax . 12 9,073 —‘4£
Operating profit/{loss) before rental expense, share of income in assaciates and joint ventures,
depreciation and amertisatien, costs due ta termination of contracts, gain/loss on sale of
fixed assets, net financial items and income tax (ERITDAR) -23,075 340,595
Rental experse 813, 36 —43 971 =74 776
Srare of iIrcome Ir associaies and joint veriures . _ o 19 13! ‘6_5_4
Qperating profit before depreciation and amartisation, casts due to term:‘mﬁion
of contracts, gain/floss on sale of fixed assets, net financial items and income tax (EBITDA) -66,915 165,165
Depreciauior and amorusatior 13,°7.°8 -53.843 —77.033
Write-dowrs ard reversal 0f wr le-dowrs 63178 —€7.004 -'3980
Gandlos: duc o ledse modit Lat ons and woren- stions - -386
Gain/loss o- sate of srares, Nlargible and 3rgible gsserts =7 —70
Operating profit/lossEBIT) ’ amT7e 73196
Firancia: Ircome 4 3,783 “io2
Firarcial expense _ ) -65.225 -4 518
Profitfkrnss) befor;! year-end appropriations ) -279,224 33.786
Year-end appropnanors
GroLo cortributior ~ ~9.228 7 -
Profitiloss) before tax —288,249 33,78
Incorme tax A _ _ 5 60470 —'_‘ 744
Prefit/lloss) for the year ) ) -228,039 21.986
Atinibutable o
Owners of the Parer: Campary ~228,039 21386
Nor-controlling interests — _
) 228,039 21,586

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For1ne Year Ended Decerber 30

TEUR Notes 2020 2019
Prof hifliss) for ire yea -228.039 2°986
QOther comprehensive income:

Ites - sthial sy U olane e lussil ca subse gt y o oralt or sy

ActLarial garsard losses 2 -195 -756
Tax or acibaral gairs ard losses a3 ‘89
ftestnal —2y be reclass fles subseauently to orofit or luss

Cuency differe-ces o travslat o of fore gr oscratiors -4.296 333
Tax on ¢ resey afferences o= 1nsia on of farecch anesa ons -a09 267
Far value gaics wealosses uncash low ~edgns 30 13i -222
Tax ar 1 valie garts g losses o cds't s edges . i 30 -29 43
Other :omprghenshre income for the year, net of tax . -5,249 3,4-58
Total comprehensive income for the year ~233,288 25,444
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owrers of tre Parer: Compary -233.288 25444

Ner-coriralirg ireres:s



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT

As of Decerapr 31

TEUR Notes 2020 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Licenses ardrelaied nghis 7 482005 3769
Otrer ntangible asses o X 122906 B4736
’ ' 604,911 122,427
Tangible aasats
Fixed irstallations ir ieased properties ‘8 62938 66.9M
Machirery ard eguiprent 18 101,534 27
Irvest=ents ir progress 7 18 25,623 28,955
' 190,085 " 223,087
Right-of-use assets
Land and ouildirgs '3 294,682 293,273
Mackirery and equiomest 3 4,353 3.750
299,035 297023
Flnancial assets
tvesiments it associated companies ‘9 1698 1479
Orrershares ard participat ons 20 596 5°80
Otrerraor-cuirentirieres:-bearing receivables 22 39350 24,835
Orrerror-cLrent raor-irteresi-beanrg receivables e 22 2.902 1207
49,646 32,70
Deferred ax assels 15 ‘5,160 109,496
’ 1,204,847 784,734
Current assets
inventones 2,670 3,988
Accourisrecevables 23 17,798 25
Currer: iax asse's 15 12,734 14,883
Qther cLrrgnt interest bearing recevaoles 24 1,353 5533
OthercLrrgrtror-irieres:-bearirg receivables 25 63,720 58,77
Denval ve inaaoal st omaims 4 — 3
Ortter shaor-ierm invesimerts ; o 26 1537 2.068
o 105,812 155,903
Cash ard cask equivaler:s 27 50 375 239,643
Asstly vy g gy meld forsale B 28 47,275 4.0
Total current assets _ 203,462 409,557
Total assets i 1,498,309 1,194,291

FINANC 1AL =LPORTS



_._As ot Decemoer 31

TEUR Notes 2020 2019
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Caplital and reserves
Share capita 29 1626 1626
QOther paid Ir capiiai 29 263078 7124
Reserves -8,07 -3.004
Retaimec ea ~ngs rolutheg profi for e year -265,147 —36.862
Equity attributable to owners of the Céﬁlpany 1,450 148,784
Non-controling irterests ‘ 1
Total equity 1,451 148,785
Non-current liabilities
Bord 3z — 242,455
Nor-currertiease labiites 337706 4'9,'64
Deferred tax hapines 15 348 20,268
Retirerort neneht obl gations 21 4 8G4 4,32
Prowisians 3 1.000 2,000
Other ror-currart neresi-beanrg habiines 32 /817.070 4,407
Other ror-currert ron-irterest-beanng liabilines 338 423
- 1461,263 §93,029
Current liabilities
Accaurts payables 74556 ‘309565
Current tax habiliues 5 24177 3.086
Current tease lizbues 6,125 47,706
Provisions 3 5,396 5,984
Denvatve ‘mdncial nst arients 4 — 34
Other current irterest-bearing nabisies 32 20.080 —
Qther curren: rar ireres:-bean~g liabilities 33 146 577 164,62
Liabilitios directly asse.ated whsisses dlass led as teid o sae 28 3,704 -
T 335,595 352,477
Total liabilities o 1,496,858 1,045,506
Total equity and llabilities ’ 1,492,309 1194,291




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Foregn Farrva ac Fa-wa oo Rotained  Attributable to-
currency roscrve ava aale reserve £angs incl. cquity Non-

Share  Otne-aad ranslaton reew oo sl b owe tetnru ] ss noldersof contra ling Tota
TEUR caaita readtal ‘pEOIVE asscls hedges!  ‘orthe period © the pargat Aterests gty
Ending balance as of December 31, 2018 11,6286 177124 -1,390 290 Fal 74,248 - 255,969 1 255970
AdjLstmerts IFRS 16 Leases — — — — — -132 316 132,316 — -132,316
Adjusted opening balance as of January
1,2019 11,626 177124 -7,390 290 7 -58,066 123,655 1 123,656
Proft for the pe od - - — — - 21,986 21,986 — 27986
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME.
AciLanal gairs end losses
ondot ned vene’it olans — — - — — -756 -756 — -756
Tax or actuarial gars and losses
ondef red oone’t plana - — - — 189 89 — ‘89
Currency differerees or trasslat or
cf fore'gr operators — — 333 - — — 333 - 3.33
Tax on exchange difere-ces secag. sed
Ir other corprerersive rcore — — 867 — - — 867 - 867
Fae walue gars 20 dosses oncash faw
reages’ - — — — —222 — <222 - -222
Tax or fair value gains and losses
on eash fow meages! — — — — 49 — 49 — 49
Total comprehensive income for the period — — 4198 — -173 2,419 25,444 — 25,444
TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS
Long termircertive plars - — — — — —375_ -3'5 — -35
Opening balance as of January 1, 2020 1,626 177124 -3,192 290 —102 -36,962 148,784 1 148,785
Proft farihe pe ed — — — — — -228,03% —228.039 — 228,039
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCCME
Acianalgairs and losses
on defined banent alans - - — - - -85 -'95 — —"95
Tax on aciuaral gairs ard losses
on cofned beneit olans — — — - — 49 49 — 49
Currenzy differer ces untrar slal o
of foreigr operatiors — — -4,296 — — — —4,296 - -4.296
lax on exchange differerces -ecogsed
Ir other comprerensive Ircome — — -309 - — - -909 - -809
Fai- value ga-s g-d losses on cash low
hedges' — - - - 13 - 3 — 131
Tax on fair va.ue gairs and losses
AN Cask Bow S edges” — — — — =23 — -29 — -29
Total comprehensive income for the period — — -5,205 — 102 —-228.185 -233,288 — —-233,288
TRANSACT.ONS WITH QWNERS
Capitat contribLzion — 85,954 - — — — . BS9%4 = 85954
Ending balance as of December 31, 2020 11,626 263,078 -8,397 290 — -265,147 1,450 1 1,451
11 Sce furtne- Note 30
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Fo-tne Yea- Ended Cecemoer 31

TEUR . Notes 2020 2019
OPERATIONS

Operating prof (FRITY -217.779 73796
Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciations, grartisatiors and write-downs 13,17.°8 150,892 9,03
Crarge ir pension assets/liabiblies 492 Q27
Share of iIrcome in associated comparies ard joint ventures ‘6.9 =" 654
Other adis:merts for rar-cask rems 30 - 86
Qther fnanc al.lems -2.998 -831
Tax paid . —1.807 —'4.579
Cash flows from up‘e_r-atiu-ns before change in working capital -71,301 148,764
Change in:

Inveriones 1181 154
Currers recevables 414’5 28,4934
Currer: laohiies . . 5,259 . 33864
Change In working capiltal o e 47,855 5,084
Cash flaw fram epetating actlvl!i-es T -23,446 153,848
INVESTMENTS

PLrckase afirtargible assets 7 -587.'05 —-510"
PLrchase related to iIrvestmeris 0 progress 18 -29.668 -23,473
PLrchase of mackirery ard eguipmer? 18 -3.232 —26.787
Purchdse ixed nstallat 0as 1 -2.605 -21,276
Purchase of shares in Prizectel -29.500 —
Other 1 wvestimet ane d vestments of inancial Sxed assels -13.956 —'3.209
Irierestreceved 2,369 272
Cash flow from inves!ir;;;c?\; —-673,797 —88,574
FINANCING

Proceeds from borrowirgs a 852,514 —
Bond - repayment 4 ~-250,000 —
Bond - early lerminguon fee 4 -5.595 —
Repaymar:s of borrowirgs 4 -20.006 -8.6582
Repaymerts of lease labiliues 3 -1g.776 -28,695
Irteres: pa-d ar lease liabilities 3 =179 -'933
C_)_‘.Ple:r_[‘.ere paid . . 4 _ ~22777 —'8,932
Tat il oxte ’ 422.389 -75,650
Cepralcontr.oLiign o 85954 —
TD_ta-\“c_as_r‘fro_m_‘.ra_P;c-t\c;.r‘; with skareholders, N 85,954 -
Cash fiow from financing activities i 508,343 -75,650
Cash fiow far the year 4 -188,900 -10,376
Tra-slat o aifference ncash and cask eguvalenis -368 15
Cash and cash eguivalents, January 1 239,643 249,868
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31 27 50,375 239,643




NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS

Nate 1 General information .

Note 2 Adoptan of now and revised internasional francial
reporting standards

Note 3 Accounting principles

Note 4 Financial r1sk management

Note & Critical jJudgements and estimates

Note 6 Keysources of est:-maton uncertainty

Note 7 Revenue .

Note d  Govelmmentyianls .. -

Note 9  Cost of goods sold food & beverage and other related expenses

Note 10 Payroll cost, number of employees, elc . ...

Note 11 Othe’ operating expenses

Naote 12 Insurance of properties and property tax

Note 13 Leases

Note 14  Financial terms

Note 15 Income taxes

Note 16 Sold and acquired operations

Note 17 Intangible assets

Note 18 Tangible assets

Note 19 Investments in associated companies

Note 20 Qthershares and participations

Note 21 Pensier funds, net

Note 22 Other long-term rece vables

Note 23 Accounts recewvables

Note 24 Other current interest-bearnng receivables

Note 25 Qther current non-interest-beanng receivables

Note 26 QOther shortterm investments

Note 27 Cash and cash equivalents

Note 28  Assers classif ed as helit “or sile

Note 29 Share capital .

Note 3G Farr value reserve — casn * ow heoges

Note 31 Provisions

Note 32 Borrowings .

Note 33 Other current non-interest-bearing liabrit-es

Note 34 Related parties

Note 35 Centingent habrities and commitied investments

Ivote 36 Management contract commitments

Note 37 Auditors’ fees

Note 38 Post balance sheet events

Note 39 Group companies and legal structure

Note 40 Proposed appropriat'on of Earnings

Note 41 Defmtions

14

14
19
21

.22

23
23
23
23
24
24
75
26
27
28
29
79
30

3

3
33
34
34
34
34
34
35
35
35
35
36
36
37
38
38
38
38
39
a1

Note 1 | ceners worraton
Radisson Hospitality AB, hereafter referred to as Radisson, the Company or
the Group, Is a imited hability company incorporated in Sweden lts registered
ofice and prnaipa! place of bus ness s 1N Stockhalm, Sweden, address <lara-
ancgsviadukten /0 07,11 64 Stockholn, Sweden The corparate head office s
located in Brussels, Belgium

The Annual Report as of Decernber 31, 2020 was approved by the Board of
Directors on June 24, 2021 The Annual Report Is subject to approval by the
Annual Genaral Meeurg on June 2o, 2021

s stardands

Note 2 | »
rs

In current year, the Group has adopted al' new and amended Standards and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and IFRS Interpretations Committee that are relevant to 1ts operatons ano
cffective for account ng per ads bogimming on Jaruary 1, 2022 and ondarsad
oy e Suropean Comnussior prnor o e release of these (nan.al state-
ments

Tne IASB made an amendment to IFRS 16 Leases duning 2020 which pro-
vides lessees with an oplion (o treat qualifying rent concessions (rent conces-
si0ns due to the COVID-19 pandemichir the same way as they woutd :f they were
not lease moarcatons The Group nas appled the sthecdment ang nas
accounted for the -ent corcessions as vanable lease payments inthe perodin
which they were granted

Nane of the new and amerded standards (including the amerdment 1o IFRS
‘6) have had ary sign ficantimpac: on the [anoal staenants

Npte 3| Accouring oy ~opes

The annual report has been prepared Ir accordance with Internatieral Finan-
cial Reporting Standards {IFRS)/International Accounting Standares (IAS) as
endorsed oy FU and the Swedish Annual Accounts Act In addston, RFR 1 Sup-
plementary Rules for Groups has beer applied. 1ssued 9y the Swedish Finan-
cia! Acceunung Standards Council

The same accounting prncples have been appled for all penods in this
annual report, unless otnerwise stated in the accounting principles beiow

Radizuan apphes the thstorneal cost rothod when prepasng e fnanciai
statements, excest for weluabion of celan fnarcal nsiruments or as
described below

Reperling currency

EUR 15 the functonal currency of the prmary economic environment in which
the Parent Company and the majority of the entities within the Group operates
ana conseguc-tly the fmandisl statements are presented witm §UR as the
reporting currency Any difference between e functional currency a~d t-e o,
rencies In which the Group companies regorls 1§ recognized In other compre-
hensive income and accumulated in eguity

General provision on recegnition and measurement
Assets are recognised n the balance sheet when it1s hkely that future eco-
~omic trenafizs well flow o the Group os s rescli of past ovents a~d the vaie of
the assets can be measured relably

Liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a 'egal or
constructive obligatior as a “esult of a past event, and itrs likely that future eco-
~amic benciits will low ot of the Groun, and the valde of the Fatuhtios can be
measured reliably.

At imitial recognition, assets and liabilites are measured at cost Measure-
~1ens after The mimal recognition is effectod as coscrped aelow for edchite

Events or transactions occurnng after the halance shee! date but before the
mane al stater-ents are issues, that proviges evidence of conditians whech
existed at the balance sheet, are used to adjust the amounts recognised in the
“rane &l sratements

Revenue 15 recognised in the income statement as and when earned,
wheregs cosls are recagnised at the amounts sttr butasle ta the 1imanc at
period unger review

NOTES TO THE GROQUP ACCOUNTS
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Cont Note 3

Basis of consolidation
The consohcated finarcial siatemenls inc a-porate the fnancial statements of
the Company and entities (including special purpose ertties) controlled by
the Company (directly or Indirectly owned subsidianies) Control 1s achieved
whiere the Company has the power to gover the !

ancal abd operating puli-
cles of an enbly S0 35 10 obtam benefits fram 15 22V T es

The finanaial statements Lsec ‘or consal dation have been prepared apply-
Ing the Group's accounting palicies

The results from subsidianies acouired or dispesed of dunng the year are
mcluded i the consohdated income stalement ram tre effeclve date of
Acguisiian o up to the effective date of disposal. as anpropr ate That cate 15
the date when the croup effecively obtoms or foses co~trol over U g subisd-aly

Whiare necessary, adustrnis are made ta the ing cal staiomenss of swo-
sidiaries to bring their accounurg palcles in line with those used by other
members of the Group

Altintra-group transactions, batances, income and expenses are eliminated
:n full on corsandation

Forintra group restructurings such as the formation of the new Parent Com
pany, g~y dfference setween the acdwsitic ~ <osls and the equity of the
acguired companies are adjusted against equity as such transactions a«e con-
sidered commaon coctrol ransactens and should not have any 'mpact on the
conschdated balance sheet

Non-cantrolling imerests in the ret assets of consclidated subsidiaries are
ideni’ ed saparately from the Gro.p's eguity therein Non-controling mterests
consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the onginal business
combination and the non-controfing’s shae of changes in equity since the date
of the combinat.on Losses applicable ta the non-contralling In excess of the
nor-controlling’s interest In the sabsidiary’s eguity are allocated against the
interest of the Group except ta the extent that the nen-centrolling has a binding
abligalion and 1s able to make agn gdditional .nvestrant o cover the losses

Business combinations
The acquisiion of companies or businesses 1 accounted ‘or Using the acgul
siion method The cost acquisiion 1s measured at the aggregate of the fair
values, atthe date of exchange, of assets given, habilies incurred or assumed
and eguity Instruments 1ssued by the Group 1n exchange for control of the
acgu:ree Costsdirectly sttiributable tothe business carbinalion are expensed
asincusied The gegu ree sidennt aple assets, Lataltios and contmgent lagl
tes that meet the conditions tor recogmition under IFRS 3 are recognised at
therr farr values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or dis-
posal groups) tmat are cassihed os bl for sale 1 accordance with [FRS =
Non-currert Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operatons, which are
recognised and measured at fair value less costs 10 sell

Goodwill arising from an acguisition 1s recognised as an asset being the
excess of the cost of the business compination over the net fair vatue of the
ideniifable assets, habilitios and contingent Labilties ecogn sed If after reas-
SessMON (e Groun's Nteaas i the net far vak:e 07 e acqu ree s e hifla-
ble assets, labilities ard contingent iabliues exceeds the cost of the business
comnmatior, the oxcess s recognisea eoediacly norolt or loss "he nles-
est of non-controlling shareho ders In the acquiree Is nitally measured at the
non-cortrolhng’s proporhor of the net fair value of the assets, habiiies ard
contngent habilities recognised The nar-controlling shareholders interest in
goodwlis iIncluded or excluded on a case by case bas s

investments in associates and interest in joint ventures

An associate s an catty over we ch 1he Groos has siomif cantmfluene e an= thatis
GO NRL g ZU0st3lary ot dnrigrest 1g Jo-nt versture Sigin car b rfigence & e
power W parucipate .o the fnanc al and oterat ~g col oy dec sions of the nvestee
but 1m not caniral or joini cotrol ower ose pel aes Sign fluant eficence s ~or-
ma:ly present In Siuations where the company has more than 20% of tne voting
interests outless than 50%

A Joirt venture 1s a contractua: arrangemen® whereby the Group ang othe’
parties undertake an econom:¢ activity that 1$ subject to joint cortrol Thatis
whier tne strategie h-ancial and operat.ng oolioy decsiars relatng o the
actvines requre the unanimows consent of the part es sharning cortral Currertly,
where the shareholding and votes are less than o equa. to 50% of total {share-
ho'dirg and votes) and Joint contro! exists, tre Company accounts for these
related mvestments as nvestments ot it vertures

The results, assets and l'abilities of gssociaies ang joint ventures are INco™-
porsies on che Group's fraroal scctenecls s gt eauny mel od of
dleoUntng excep! when ine imvostmenr s £1ass fed as hela fo- sale, 1 wh o
case it s accounted for uncer IFRS 5 ho--Cur-ent Assets Held for Sale a~d
discontinuad operat ons

The share of ncome represerts the Company's share inthe net income {after
tax) from these asscciates and Is direclly accountad for in the ncome state-
ment o further income lax expense 1s charged "o the share of ircome as this
kind of Imcome 's untaxed N tne countras of the related shareholding entities

Jnder the equity method, investments in associates and joint ventures are
carried in the consohidated balance sheet at cost, adjustea for post-acquisiion
changes in the Group's share of tne net assets of the asscciate, 1ess any
impairment In the value of Individual Investments Losses of an assgciate in
excess of the Group's interest e that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in subsiance, form pari of the Group’s net Investment In the
associate) are not recogrised

Any goodwill ansing from the acquisition of the Group's Irterest In a jointly
controfied entity or an associated company s accounted for in accordance with
the Group's accounting poaicy for goodwill ansing on the acquisition of a subsid-
1ary [see above)

Gains and losses from divestment of shares

Gains or losses from divestment of subs'diaries and associates are calculated
as the difference netwee the seling prive snd the carrying amaunt of trhe net
assels at the tima of divestment, including a properuonate share of related
goodwil and estimated divestment expenses Gains and losses are recog:
nised in the Ircome statement under “Gain/loss on sale of shares, intang-ble
and tangible assets”

Foreign currency

Assets gnd licbilities in foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the reporting currercy using
average monthly rates, which pssenbally reflect the rae af excharge of e
dale of transact on Recevables, habili:es and atner monetary tems denomi-
nated in foreigr currencies that have not been setiled at the baisnce sheet
date are translated using the rate of excharge at the balance sheet date
=xcharge differences Tnal anse Beween the rale ot 'he date of “ransaclon
and the one in effecs at the dale of payment, or the 1ate 8t the balance sheet
dale, gre recogrised in the income stglement as income or expense £xchange
Glerences onaperenng Heths are reodriscd 1N opesabing proiit Exchange
¢ flerences animancial tems are cecagisaedin the ngome statemen: as tian-
cidl INncome or expense

Transiation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries

The finctiona currency of the majonity of the reporting ertities s censide-ed
to be therr local currency Wher consolidating, the reporting entlies’ \ncome
staterents are translated using the monthly average rates and the balance
sheots are tra~slated using the rates at the balance shee: date Any difeience
between the loca. currency and the functioral currency fo- the Group 'srecog-
nised in the statement of comprehensive income

The main exchange rates affecting the financial statements are

Year-end rate Average rate

Dec. 31 _ Jan.1-Dec. 3
Country Currency 2020 2019 2020 2019
Denmark DKK 744 747 745 746
Sweder SEK 006 ‘049 ‘D48 plog-t)
horway NOK 049 9ga 1073 985
urited Kingdom GBP [oR=1s] ogs 3.1 Q&8
uUrited States uso t2z2 12 14 12

Income statement
Revenue recognition
Revenue corsists of the value of goads and services sola in the leased prop-
ertigs, maragement fees, francnise fees ana other revenues wk ch are gener-
ated from the Group's operations
Revenue 15 measured at the far value of the tonsideration rece ved or
receivable and represents amounts recewante for goods ana services pro-
vded i the normai coursa af business, Netof discounts and saies related taxes
The folowing is @ descrniption of the compositan of revenues of the Group
Leased properties - primarly received from hote operations, including all
revenue receved from guests for accommodation, carferences, fooo and dninks
or af~er services Revenue s recogrised when the sale has been rerderet!
Management fees — rece ved from ~otels managed by the Group under
‘ong-term contracts with the hatel owner Management fee 1s normal'y a pe--
zertage of ratel revenue andwo- prof - and tecagni<ed in the 1-come state-
mentwhen earned and realised or real'sabe under the terms of the contragt
Franch se fees ~ received in connection with the license of the Group's
brand names, usually under long-term contracls witn the hatel gwner Fran-
rse feos cormally o percertage of soles reven e andfor sroht and cecog-
sised in thearcome state ment cased 0N the underlying contract agreements
Irterest INCome 1s accrued on a tme »asis, by -efere~ce 1o the princpal
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outsianding and o the efective interest rate applicabie Div derd fominvest-
mernts 1s recognised when the shareholders nghts to receive payment have
been establ:shed

Customer Loyoity programme
A Customer ioyalty programme, Radisson Rewards, 1s used by the Company o
provide customers with Incentives ta buy rcom mights Radisson Hospitality AB
15 not hable for paints awarded under the loyaity programme, which I1s oper-
ated oy Radisson Hospitalty, In¢

The Company's customers are awarded loyalty points under various third
party ioyalty programs The custemers are entitled to utlilise the awards as soon
as they are granted Revenues for Radisson's portion of the award credits are
recogmsed when the customer chooses 1o clam awards from the third party

Governmen! grants

Government grants received are recognised in the consolidated siatement of
operations In accordance with [AS 20 Government grants received for general
fixed cosl compensalion s recoghised oy olivel Icot e Governrenl yranis
recewved directly related 1o payroll 1s recognised as personnel costs. Govern-
ment grants received directly related to rent is recognised as rental expense

Cost of goods sold
Cost of goods sold relates mainly to cost of goods in restaurants {Food & Drinks)
incurred to generate revenue

Leasing
Radissons leases hotels in operation Lease contracts are recognized as
right-of-use {RolU) assets as well 85 interest-bearing lease labihities in the bal-
ance sheet Lease habilities are measured by the present value of future
lease payments The lease hability :s catcu'ated using discountrates depend-
ing an country and lease terms Rol assets are presented as tangible assets
and are valued at cost less acc.mutated depreciation and impairment, if
needed The cost of a Rol asset conta:ns the mitial amount of the lease lia-
bility adjusted for any lease paymnents made before the commencement date,
less any lease incentives receved Moreover, any initial direct costs are
included as well as an estimate of costs to be incurred In dismantling, remov-
Ing or resiornng the underlying assel The leased asset s deprecialed on
straight-une Dass over the lease term, or over the useful life The lease
expeonse srecngmsed as depreaation of the asses within aserating proft
Ad tterest exXperse within 'he fnans al cxpense Payments made are ds-
tributed between interest paid and amortizatien of the lease zability If a lease
contract includes varable lease paymenlts not dependent on ar index or
rate, orinclude a low value assel or has a lease term that1s twe ve months o7
less, the lease payments are recognized as operating expenses as they
ola iy

Most of the iease contracts for the hotel properties include a so-called CAP
mechanism Inthese contracts Radisson pays the higher of (1) 8 stipulated mini-
mum rent amount and (2} a variable amownt calculated as a percentage of reve-
nues and orprof toftre sotel N ine calculated vas able amountisiowe: than t-e
minimum rent (i e shortfall), the mimmum rentis paid Such shortfall reduces the
CAP amount {t e CAP s utilised) and 1s aggregated over time and as from the
moment tre aggregated shortfall reduces the CAP amount stipulated in the
lease contract to nil, only vanabie lease 15 paid

Radisson considers the amount of the CAP as being the minmum unavoid-
able lease payment under IFRS 16 and therefore recognises the nel present
value of the CAP grmount as the lease lisbility on the balance sheet The sub-
seguent accounting for the lease hability depends whether or not manage-
ment believes tnat the CAP will be utiised over the term of a lease

For hotels where maragement believes that the CAP will be utilised during
the lease term Radisson measures the lease liability in line with manage-
ment's expected usage of the CAP for each hotel based on the business plan
and recduces the tease hability in ine with the expected utilisation of the lease
term

For hotels where management Selieves that the CAP wili not be utilised
during the lease term Radisson measures the lease tiability assuming usage at
the end of the lease te-m and reduces the lease habilily at the end of the lease
term

IFRS 16 15 2 new standard which 15 currently still being adopted and inter-
preted in practice Due to the lack of any applicable accounting standards or
irterpretatons n relatiss o ouse speats CAP arra~gements  allerrative
accounting pokcies may have been developed or applhed by other paruies for
similar contracts However, Radisson management currently believes that the
applied accounting pot.cies are both reievant and reliable and therefore pro-
vide use Ul infortiastion o the reguers ol these 1 aangial stalemernts Manage -
ment of Radisson, however, 15 constantly assessing and benchmarking these
accounting policles As a result, changes to these accounting poicies may be
recuted coee more pndance o 1 dustry speafic nterpretakons might
become available :n the future

Personnel cost

Perscnnel costs comprise salaries and wages as well as sociat securnty costs,
pension contributiors, etc for employees employed by the legal entitigs of the
Company

Qther operating expenses

Cther operating expenses incude royalty fees to Radisson Hospitality, inc
and marketing expenses as well as expenses related 10 operaung the hotels
such as energy costs, supplies, othes externa fees, laundry and dry cleaning,
contract services, administration costs, communication, travel, transport,
aerd Ng equipment icences, Inantenant e ontracts and exchange drffes-
erces on operating Items

Financial income and expenses

Financial Income and expenses items incude interest iIncome and expenses,
eaisett andunredl sed foreign exchange gans on financial tems. namk ¢rarges,
write downs af [ nanc.al loans and reevanles and capital gnins nd losses an
loans and recevables and on llabdities as well as capital gains and |osses on
‘ranc.al assets

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of tne tax currently payable and
zeferrad tax The conent tax s basea on laxable protit for the yes Taxatde
oraft differs from prafit as reporled In the income statement begause ol
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductble In other
years and t further excluces items that are never taxable or deauctbe The
Group's laoihity for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted In the respective tax junsdictions on the
balance sheet date

Deforedlaxis resagqo ined as he d Perene e belween the - arying amaount of
seails ard Idbiiilies nrthe T dancal s aterments and the correszot o ey lax biase
usedin e computat o o laxable prot, andis accounred far us ng the balance
sheet hability method Deferred tax is generally recognised for all taxaole tem-
porary diffe ences Deferred tax assets are recogmsed to the extest that 1s
oracable thet taxable protits will be avalab.e aganst which deduchble tempo-
~ary differences can be stifised Suc - assels ana kabilt es are not recogr sed i
‘he terparary difference anses from goodwill o from the inimial recogmitien
[other than 1 a busness comtynation) of other assets and habilities in a transac-
san it affects na ther the taxanle proft nor the accau-ting profit

Detered tax llabihles are recagnise ‘or laxable le cporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and asscciates and interestin jJoint ven-
tures, except where the Group is able to control the reversai of the temporary
G fference and 2 es pronchle nat the tempora y diference will not reverse n
the foreseeabie future

The carrying amount of ceferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance
sheetdaie andraoduced o the extent that Ly no langer probahle that suffic en
axable prof ts will be avalerle to allow all o1 partof the assetsto he recovered

Deferred tax Is ca culated at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the
period whentne liability1s settled or the assetrealised Deferreataxischarged
o crediled o prof  ar loss, except whenitrelates to tems cha ged or credited
directly to equity, Inwhich case the deferred tax 1s aiso recogmsed in equity

Defer-ed tax assets and habihtee: are o%setwhien thee s a legally onloce-
able nght o sel ot curent tax assets dgdrist corrent lae hlies and when they
relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the Groups
ntends (o seitle 1ts current tax assets and habilities on a net basis

Current and ceferred tax for the penod are recognrsed as an expense or
ecome s pratil ar koss, excepl when hey relale fo ilems credited or detsted
directly 1o equity, n which case the tax Is aiso recogrised directly in eguity, or
where they anse from the 'nitia accounting for a business combination In the
case of g busiross combnation, the tax efec s taken into acocountin caloolat-
ing goodwill or determining tre excess of the acquirer's interest in the net fair
value of the acaqu rer s dent f sble assols, llabdities and contmgen! labihities
over cost

Balance sheet
Licences and other rights and Other intangible assets
Acquired intangitile assets are measured at cost less accumulated amorusation
These Intangible assets are smorlised on a straight line basis Licences and
ather rights primarily relate to the Radisson brands which is being amartised
over 20 years Other mtangible assets are rormally the result of intangible
assets acqguired as part of new lease, management or franchise agreements and
are amorused over the contrac period

If impaired, intangible assets are wniten down to the lower of recoverable
amount and carrying amount

NQOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS
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Property, plant ond eqguipment
Fixed instalistions in leased properiies as well 8s machunery and equipment
(mainty resatec to INvestments In leased hotlels) are measured at cost less accu-
mulated depreciation and wrnite -downs

Costincludes the acquisition price, cosls directly refated to the acguisition
and expenses incurred to make the asset ready to be put nto eperation

inzerest and athar fingnce costs relating to "angible assets dunng the o)
ufaciunng penod are recogmised In the income statement

The basis of depreciatior 15 cost less the estimated residual value at the
end of the assets usefuyl Iife Depreciatior Is calculated on a straight-ine basis
based on an assessment of the assel's estimated useful ives

e

Fixea installauons and technical improvements
Guestroom Furniture, Fixture and Equipment (FF&E)
Other Furriture, Fixtures & Equinment and Machirery

71010 vyears
Sto 7 years
3to 7years

In case the remaining term of a lease agreement for a hotel 15 shorter than the
estimated useful life of the asset, the depreciation penod 15 Imited to the
remainder of the ease term

Tangible assels are written down to the recoverable amourtif this amount
15 lower than the carrying amount The recoverable amount $ the higner of the
red sdle valle ang the yalye i use Profis aralosses fram the sale o tamgible
assels are calolated gy the ditference betweer the seling price less selling
expenses and the carrying amroun: at the ime of sale

tmpairment of tangibie and intangibie assets excluding goodwill
Al each balance sheet date, the Group revews the carrying amounts of its
tangrble and intangible assets to determine whether tnere 1s any ‘ndication of
‘mpairment If any such indication exists. the recaverable amount of the asset
s estmated In order to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any}
Where it 1s not possible 10 esumate the ~ecoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of e cash-generating
unit 1o which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount s the higher of fa 1 value less costs to sell and value i
use b asse=aing vl use the estimgted Tulure casa flows ate disc o, nleo
o the'r present valug using a pre-tax discou~t»ate thal re” et corrent market
assessments of time value of money If the recoverable amount of an asset (o”
cash-generaing unit s estimated 1o be less than its carrying amount, the car-
rying amount of the asset {cash-generating un.th 1s recuced to 1ts recoveratile
a7 aunt A ImpalrTent ioss s recognasan e medutely o proaft or less When
an impairment loss subseguently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
{cash generaling unit «s Increased 1o the revised estimate of 1ts recoverable
amount, but o that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carry-
ing amount that would have been determined had no impairmert loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit} in prior years A réversai of an
e tloss s im™ediaiely recognised noprof Torloess

Assels classified as held for sale
Non-curent exsets anz d sposals groups are ¢ lassined as held for sale if then
carrying amount wit be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than througk contiruing use This condition is regarded as met only when the
sale 15 highly prebable and the nen-current asset {or diseosal group) 1s avalla-
tie for iImmediate sale in 1ts present condion Management must be commit-
ted to the sale, which shauld be expected to gualify for recognition as a com-
wleted wale withir one year from the dite of class.fcaton

When the Group 15 committed o a sale plan invelvng loss of control of a
subsid ary allof ima assets apg llab | ies of thal si.bs mary are classif ea asnelg
for sale when the critena described above are met, regardiess of whether the
Group will retaini a ron-controdling interest inits forrer subsichary after the sale

Non-curresl assels (an: distusdl groups) classified as - eld ‘ar sale are
measured at the 'owar of therr previgus car-ying amount and fair value less
costs to sell

inventories

inventories are measured atthe lower of cost {using the FIFG princpie)ard net
realisable value Cost of goods forresale, raw matertals anc: corsumables con-
si1st of purchase price plus hangling cost

Financral assets

i1 Class fication

Tre grown clasafies s fnannial assels im the ‘olowing redsu e ent catego-
nes {1 those to be Measured subsequert'y at farr vaiue (eithe through other
cororebenave nos Y e o thrgugs profit or loss), ana {2) those to be meas.red
A amottsed cast The glase caton depernds on the e Dty s nusicess nodel
Tar ar ageng the Thdt gl asseds ara the cantraciual lerms of e vas® Tows
Forimvestments in edoity imstruments that are not neda far tradimg, < las=if ca-
von will depend or wheather the group has made anirevecable elecuon at the
ume af mtal recogn uor 1o accownt for the eguity irvestment at far value

“hrouge atner comprehensive awome ["FYOCH Y Tre group -eclassifios denf
Investments when and only when 115 business mogel for managing those
assets changes

{i) Recognit-on and derecogrition

Regular way purchases and sales ol inaoual assets gre recognised on tade-
date, the date on which the groun commils to purchase or sell the asset Finan-
zial assels gre derecognised when 1e nignts to receive cash flows from te
fi-anc al assels ~ave expred or ~ave seen lrans‘erred and the group has
transferred substantially all the rsks and rewards of ownership

(1) Measuremrent
Al rndl recogniion, 1he grou rieasties o fadngial assel at s fair valde plus,
“he case of a tnancial assel not at far value throwgh profit or foss ("EVPLY, trans
actier cosis thot are di ectly atnbutalle W the acqusiion of the inancial asset
Transaciion costs of f nancial assets carted al FVPL are expensednprol torloss

{ay Debtinstruments Subseguent measurement of debt rstruments depends
anthe group's business model for managing the asset a-dthe cash flow charac-
teristcs of the asset There are three measy-ement categories inte which the
group classifies its debtingteuments

Amorhses cost Assels thn ane held 1or collect on of contractual cash “ows
where these cash flows repiesent solely paymrents of penoipal drd merest ure
~eas.res gl amortisen cost inlerest ncome fom hese Aranaal assets s
acl.ded i fnatoe rcome using the «f e tive interes: e met-od Ay qar ar
loss arisitig en derewogouan - s recogriscd dired llynpral Lor loss @ dpreserled
In other gains/{losses) together with foreign exchange gans and losses Impair-
- ectlosses ate preserted ds separalic Ine fem e statement of profil or loss

FVQCl A that are heed for colled o of contracteal cash Hows and
wolh g e fraroal desets whete Ue assets cash flows renresest solely pay-
ments of principal ard interest, are measured at FVYOC! Movementsin the carry-
'ng amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognilion of Impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreigr exchange gains and losses which are rec-
cgnsedinprof Lot loss Whenthe freanadl asse s derecogrised, the cur uaive
e o loss proviodsly ecodgnised n QCHs -eclassif.ed trom equity to prohit or
loss snd recogr sod o ather garslosses) interestincome fro~ these inane al
assels s ncluded o france CLome using the effedt ve imterost rate metnod
Foreign exchange gans and losses are presented n other ga ns/iiosses) and
impairment expenses are presented as separate ine iem in the statement of
craht crloss

FWPL Assets that do not meet the critena for amorused cost or FVOC are
measured at FVPL A gain or lo$s on & debt nvestrent that 's subseguently
~reda.re s at FVEL s recogmised = ool tor loss and srosented el within other
gansilosses)in the period n whicn it anses

(o) Equty instrumerts The group sJbsequently measures all eguty invest-
ments at farr value Where tne group's management has elected to present fair
vaue gamns and losses on equity investments in OCI, there 1s no subsequent
reclassiization o far velue gans and losses e nrobt or less follawing the
detecognition of the investment Dividends from such investrents continue 1¢
Bre tee ocquised . posfit an loss as ather neomewhen the gqroups eaht W recene
payments 1s eslablished

Changues in the fdir varue of finanaal desels at FYPL are recogisec m other
cans:dlosses) it tre statcanent of prott or loss as apcheable imparrent
10sses [and -eversal of impairment losses) on equity Investments measured at
FVOC! are rotreported separately from ather changes in fair value

{iv) Impairment
The group assesses on a forward :0oking basis the expected credit losses
associated with 1ts gebt nstruments carned at amortised cost and FYOCI The
imparrment methodology apphed depends on whether there has been a sig-
~ficantincrease in credit nsk

For accounts recenvanles, the grous aogheos e simphfied aoproach pet-
mitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected ifet me Iosses to be recognised
from mitial recognition of the recevadie

Disciosures regarding derivatives and hedging activities

1) Class ficanon of dorval ves

Derivatives are only used for economic necqing purposes and notas specuta-
tive investments —However, where dervatves do not meet the hedge accoun-
sng corer s thoy are classifod as meld o tradieg’ far accounting parposes
and are accou~ied Tar al fa s value thra Lgh prof T or loss Thoy ame preosented
as curren’ assets or labilities to the extent they are expected o be settled
withir 12 months after the end of the reparting penod

A Heedaqe inetfec iveriess
—edge efochiveness s determined a7 the incepticn o U e bedye redatonsh o,
and Irosgh er oo prospes e o7 bveness dosessrents 10 e sure hal an
economic relationship exists between the hedged item and nedging insirument
Sor hedges of foreign currency purchases, the grouo erters into hedge
relationships where the cnucal terms of the hedging instrument match exactly
with the terms of tne hedged item The group therefore performs a guaitatve
assessimes | of offeciveess If changea in oog orsta ces a“oct the terms of




Cont. Note 3

the hedged 1tem such that the critical terms no longer match exactly with the
critical terms of the hedging nstrument, the group uses the hypothetical deriv-
anve method to asscss ctfectiveness

It hedges of foreign currenacy purchases, neffectiveness may anse if the
timirng of the forecast transachion changes from what was eriginaliy estrmated,
orif there are changes in the credit nsk

Contract assets
Contract assets are compnsed of accrued fee income and other accrued
income All due within 12 montns

Receivobles
Recewvables dare lasadied as foens and recesvables and ireastred
tised cost, usually equaling nominal value, less alowance for doubtfu!
accounts

The group appacs the IFRS 9 si-plified approgch to measur v exaected
cregrt losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for al accounts
recevables To measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
pastdue

The expecied loss rates are bascod or the paymoent profides of sales over g
penad of 24 mon:h before the end of the reportirg penod and the correspond-
ing mistorical credit losses expenenced within this period The historical loss
tates are sthusted ta reflect cunert and ‘aorwar d-looking information on mac-
roeeoromic fac ors aectarg the ability or the custoriess [o ~eitle e recevd-
bles

Accounts reccivatles are writlen A ween there s o red=onable expsecta-
uon of recovery Indicators that there s na reascnab‘e expeciation of recovery
include, amongst otne-s, the fallure of a debtor 10 engage 1n a repayment plar
with the group, and a failure 10 make contraciluai payments Impairment losses
on accounis receivabies are preserted as net :mpairrment losses within oper-
aung proft Scbaeguent recovencs o emoants previausly we Uenoff die cred-
1ted aganstthe same tine item

RIS

Cther short-term investments
Otrer short term investments are comprised of cash on restricted accounts
and are measured at nominal value

Contract liabilities
Contract iabilities are compnised of prepayments from customers, accruals for
loyalty programmes and prepaid income All due witun 12 months

Accounts payable
Accoonts payable ate dassifiicd os alner fnannial hab:l §es ana ecoyrnsed at
amortised cost, usually equalling nominal value

Cther interest- and non-interest-bearing labilitics
Qther interest- and non-interest-icanng hao les a © classibed asale Jean-
cial hlabihties and recognised at amortised cost

Provisions

Provistons for obligations related to lease contracts and management cor-
tracts are made If a contract s considered to be onerous Other provistons are
recognised and measured as the best estimate of the expenses required for
settling the tabilites at the balance sheet date Provisions that are estimated
to mature In more thar one year after the balance sheet date are measured at
the.r present value

Retirement benefit obligations
Several companies within the Group have established pension plars for iis
employees. These pension commutments are mainly secured through varous
nen=ionplans These vary conscenanty due o difecent leg slation angd agree-
ments on occupationat pension systems in the individual countries

For pension plans where the employer Fas accepiea responsibility for
aolned cantnbution solutions, the obligal oos 10 eTpoyees ceases when
contractual premums save been paid Fur other pe-sios plans where defred
concl i pensions Nave been agieed, the commimeis do not cease unul the
contractial pensions have been paid to the employee on retirement

The hatylity recogniscd i the balance sheet o respest of def- ed penefit
Setislon plans s the presen valee ol the denned benest obhgaton gt the end of
she reporting penod less he far value of plan assels, The del nee benefit oblica
tion 1s calculated annually by ndependert actuares using the projected unit
cred tmethee The preserd value af the defned heneft abligation s determ ned
oy discounting the estimaied future cas™ outflows Luirg nterest ratos of
high-qualty corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the
guhe’ s Wl be peitt, and that have lernmns lo -aturty apprexirating to the fenns
of the related pension obligation In courttnies where there 1s no deep market in
such bords, the markel rgtes on government bonds are used

Actuanal gans and losses ansirg from expenence adjustments and
changes In actuanal assumplions a~e charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the pernod in which they arise

Past-service cosis are recogmised immediately inircome

Shore-based payment transactions

Fair value at grant date for the long-term equity-settled incentive programmes,
inwhich the parucipants of the plans recetve a certain amount of shares in the
Company If certain performance critera are met cunng the vesting penod, 15
recognised as an experse over the vestng per od, adjusted for the numrber of
participants that are expected 1o remam in service An amount equal to the
expense Is credited o equity In adduon to tre service crteria, the pro-
grammes have a performance critena reialed to earmings per share ([EPS), 3 s0
called non-marketcondition The non-market conditions are taken into consid-
eration -n the assessment of the number of snases that will be vested at the
ead aof the vesting perica The additional social secunty costs are reported as
a habihity, revalued at eacr balance sheet date in accordance wiir UFR 7,
issued by the Swedish Financial Accounting Standards Cowncil's Emergency
Task Force

Cash Flow Statement

The casn fow stalement s preseoted csing the redirect me nod D shows cesh
fows fro™ nperalirg aciivities, investog activites and “nancng aclivlies as
well as the cash and cash equivalents atthe beginning and at the end of the
“nane al per od Cas flows from “he grauise.on and divestme=t of enie erises

are shows separately under “Cash flow flom invest ng actviies Cash flows
Tom acyuies enterprises are recoygrised nthe casa tlow statoment rrom the
ame of therr ccguisition and £as— finws from civested eritersises are 10C0g-
nised up to the ime of sale

‘Cash fiow lror operati—g actvities” 15 catculated as gporating income
before tax adjusted for non-cash operating tems, INcrease or decrease in
waorking capital anc change in tax position

“Cazh flow from weshing detivizies™ incudes paymoents o conreshior wih
the acqu.sition and divestment of enterprises and activines as well as the pur-
chase and sale of intangible and tangible assets

"Cash flow from financnyg activtos” ncludes changes 0 the size of the
composition of the Group's 1ssued capital and related costs as well as the
raising of lgans, instalments on interest-bearing debt, and payment of divi-
dends Cash flows denaramated in foreign arroncies, including cash flows i
foreign subs.dianes, are translated to the Group reporting curency using
average momnly rains which essertally ref et the rates al the dale of pay-
ment Cash at year end Is translated to the functional currency using the rates
atthe balance sheet date
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Note 4 | rravci s« m3nagemoert

Radisson's fnancial sk managomoent s governed by s Irance policy
duproved by the Board of Direclors Acc ording 1o the finance policy, e cor-
porate treasury function of the Campany systematically monitors and evalu-
dtos the wnanc &l nsks, suach as foreig~ oxchange, nterest rate, credit and
hgquicity risks Radisson’s carporate and regional operational teams systemat-
ically meonitar market nisks related to 11s business Measures amed at manag-
irgand handlng fmancial nsks gre docamented m Rad sson's hnauce pohcy as
well as a fnance manuat Tre france policy » ~eviewed oy the corporate
treasury function on an ongaing basis and presented to the Board on an
annual basis for approval

According tothe indnice policy, the = easury function may Lse Snanoal ratu-
ments, such as FX forwards, FX swaps, FX options and interest rate swaps to
hedge against currency and interest rate nsks At year-end, the Company ~ad
ertered Into Cortain hedging contracts tor cash tow 1€lated to some of s fee
income FX swaps have also been used to reduce or eliminate the use of over-
draft facilities and mitigate FX volallity, 85 described unde- 'Liquidity risks’

Interest rate risks

Cash flow risks

Current fimane ng includes Ixed mterest raley s t~e palicy of e Company
1natather horrowings a-d inve<imeats should Rave short term floannginforest
reles The effecron fimanoalnet ntheinco~o statement ol a chamge mmarke’
interest rates with 100 basis po'nts would be immate-al, based on the net
fing~cial assets an December 31 2020

Fair voiue risks

Since almost a.linterest-peanag rescwvables arc an a flogt gumerestara: ge-
ment and carrned at amortised ¢ost, there .5 no materalmpac: from changes
N markel intgrest rates on the carrying values of these receivables and conse-
quently na materal impact on the income statemert or equity

Off-baiance sheet commitments

The i rgnaing sk s related o the coposy s abil 1y 1o wontrot and meel
e consaty's o-baance shect camrmitments u der leases with ‘ed rent
pdyments ang management agreements with guaraniees Such fixed lease
and guararteed amoun's have histoncatly beon agreed an a fxed rale Dasis
with indexation as 8 percent of change In the relevant consumer prce ndex,
and are, therefore, not exposed to varialans n the mrarket interest rates In
addition, lease commiments are normally mited to an agreed maxmum
fing-aal exposure which 1m usudlly capped at 2 3 ties t0 an~ua guaran-
teed res )T uncer o conteact or an annuzl mnmum lease The off-balance
sheet commitments are consequently normally reduced over trae contract
te'm as the ¢aps are consumed

Currency risks

The Company has eBCrakonNs Na vas nunber of 2ountnes with miasy 2 Haren:
currercies and 15 thecetore oxposed to culrenoy oxchaneges 1o Hugruagt ons
The mos: portant foreign currencies are the Swedish Krona [SEK), the Nor-
wegian Krone (NOK), the Damish Krone (DKK), the U S Oollar (USD), the Swiss
Franc {CHF) and the Pound Sterling (G3P) The exposure from the DKK s, how-
ever, imited as the currency 1s pegged to the TR

Transaction exposure

When erttes withn "fe Group generale rovenies ang incur costs .nod ferent
currencies, they are subject 1o transaction exposure For the leased opera-
hons, the nalu-e o the business 15 normasiy local, @na consequenily tre expo-
sure s imited Urlhke the leased operation, tne fee business 1s general'y sub-
Ject to a relatively nigher transactior exposuce This ransaction exposdre
arises when fees are collected by ertities located in angthes country than that
of the notel from which the fee onginates Hotels ir certain markets with Figr
currency volatiity énd a .arge 1ternatonal customer base, however, generally
adjust thewr room rates charged in the local currency to take into account vola-
tle s uctuations inthe SUR Pad ssor s report ag ouree oy, or the L850

Transtation exposure
The Cairpany aresents its fnancial steleronts n ZUR Sinze certain of Radis-
son’s foreign operations have a funciiona: currency other than EUR, the con-
sol dated firancal statemoents and s atekolders’ equty are exposec @
oxchange tate “uctuations when the 1~come state~cnty and palance sheets
In fareign currencies are translated Nto EUR The exposure on the consoli-
dated egurty 15 however lowered through the decision 1o not own any real
estate as thisreduces the tota! assels dencminated In foreign currencies

A sengitivity 8 -alysis shaws that f the EGR woula f uctaaie by 9% aga nst
other currencies In the Group, excluding DKK which 15 pegged to the EUR,
the elfect on the consohdeted equity wounle e appreximately MEGR 107,
based on the equity 3t year-end 2020, and MEUR B & on total revenue,
MEUR 01 on EBITDA and MELR 18 on net income, based on the income
stateme~t for 2020 This scostivity assuines toat al currencies would flustu-
ate 5% aganst the EUR and does not take irto account the correlation
cetween ard the resoiting nisk divers ficahios lrom hose currences

Credit risks

Credtrnzks ate -elated ta the fnancaf recewvables in the palance sheet e
‘Other ong-term interest-beanng receivables’, ‘Other long-term nor-interest
beanngreceivables’ 'Other currentinterest-bearing recevables' and ‘Accounts
receivables’ Above that, the Group 5 also exposed to credit risks related to
‘Other short-term investments’ and 'Cash and cash equivalents’

At the local hetel levet, the credit exposure 1s normally hmited, as the
accounts regularty are settled in cash or by accepted credit cards Credits are
anly offered ta costamears wrder a conlract and only to companios o regestered
organisations with a legal structure Credit terms must be descroed in the con-
iactana corply with the guidelnes as oescnbed n the dnance ~anual As for
managed and franchised hotels, a backgreund check of the Fotel owner 15
made before enterng inte a new contract, ncluding, where possible, an inves-
tigation of the creditworthiness The credit term s rormally 30 days for both
local kotel custosers a=o for fees The H-ancal guideleas set strict rules or
the follow-up of overdue receivables and for credit meetings As sales in both
the local Fotels and the fee invoicing 1o managed and franchised notels, are
aispersed among many dirferent ¢ustome-s, the Group Has itde wredit rse
exposure to any single counterpartly or any group of counterparties having
similar characteristics information about accounts recevables averdue
and impaired a: year end 13 presented in Note 23

In some cases, Radissan grants 10ans to ownrers of Rad sson's hotels, or
to Joint venture partners and associated companigs in early stages of new
prejects The terms for such loans vary, but 1in principle there 1S an agree-
ment g1 interest o0 the loans and the repayment schedule 1s based on the
project openirng and project progress Based on market conditions, inter-
est rates, repayment schedules and secunty arrangements have been
agreed upon Terms and conditions for such ioans are decided unon cen-
aally by Group finanaal manage=ent |- farmation about these [aens, matu-
Nty dates, secunly arrangements etc s presented in Notes 22 and 24

Casr not necessary for the normal course of busmess 15 geposted Ik a
bank Central treasu-y 15 responsible o coardinate the handl ng of surplus
llguidity and I-qu dity reserves, and only central treasury ar persons autnor
1sed by central treasury may engage in externa' investment tra”sactions
Indiidual notels and admin straton umits with excess guidity which can
not e held on accounts within the ¢ash pool structure can -nvest exier-
nailly only with the prior consent of central treasury and in accordance with
the tha~ce pel oy According 1o the finance pal ¢y, the nvestments of sur-
ptus hquidity can only be made 11 creditworthy interest-bearing securties,
N secunties with migh llquieity and, as regards deposits, normatly with
“nancidl mstitenons with g cating of A-YPYF o higher The casryng
amoun: of these fmanaial assels, as discdosed o the lgole below repre-
sents the maximum credit exposure for the Group

AsafJeg 31

2020 29
Girer org-ermirieresi-bearnng recelvaoies 39,850 24,8325
Ofer lprg-term ror-irieres-bearing receivad es 2902 1207
Accourts recaivable 7798 725
Other currert ~or-iriaresi-bearirg rece.vables 52,324 23,236
Oirercurrentirtergs:-neanrg recelvables 1353 5533
Qirerskori lerm invesiments 1837 2068
C_as_l" ard cask equivaleris 50,375 239643
Maximum credit exposure 166,139 367,773



Liquidity risks
Liguidity risk 1s that the Company i1s unable to meet its payment obhgations
vecacsse of insuff cient igedity or difficulty inraisieg exter-al fnancing Rais-
ng of capital ard placement of excess liquidity 15 managed centrally by the
central treasury function The Group has objectives for lguidity reserves,
such as excess cash and iwrevocable credit faciities, that the Greup should
nave avallable at any tme The central treasury funclion momitors daly the
cash positien of the d-fferenl eniit os withi~ “he Grouw 1o e—sure an effic et
anc adequate use of cash and overdraft facilities

Radissor’'s borrowings at year-end 2020 s presented in Note 32 In addi-
Lan, the Company has coeditjacliies of TEUR 5,000 (25,000 wit Ananual
mshitutions At year-end 202C, TEUR 4,000 (0} was used for overdraft and
TELR 4593 {340) was used for bank guarantees Cash and cash eguivalents
amourted to TEUR 50,375 (239,643}, of whicn TEUR 48,782 (238,714) were n
banks and | EUR 593 (928) in petty cash at several notels and administration
uwnits

To reduce or eiminate the use of overdraft and to mitigate FX volatility,
Radisson regu arly enters into short term FX swaps ard rolling twelve-month
currency hedges On December 31, 2020, the Company had no outstanding
FX swaps On December 31, 2019, the Company had EUR to SEK swaps of
TEUR 4,000, with a maturity of two weexs, and GBP to CHF swaps of TGBR
5,000, with a matunty of 1 month

The effects of Covid-19 1= 2022 - ave s gn ficantly mparred availanio
iquicity Through the Group's and the shareholders' direct actions, including
a suppert letter ssued by an all hateo company, liau dity ‘o the nexe twelve
meontrhs s secured, and the Group's continued operations are not threat-
ened

The payment obligations of the Group atyear-cng, defines as “he remar -
ng daturry for francal labil tes, s presented below

As of Betwees | Botween 2 ‘ota con
Decemroaer 31, Wienl and 2 and b Qve9 tractua' Cary ng
2020 yoar yoars Y¥Cars yeas tds» luan amount

No© rash
eranges

Other ror-gurrers
interes: bearirg
lizbities 47.86° 48,71 5787 ©932.886 " 546,669 8°7.070
Other currert
interest bearirg
ligtr nes

20,761 — - - 20,76 20,060

Lease habuhnies 75,991

144,613

38,266 90,253 334,285 bH3B8.795 393883
86,377 608,064 1,267171 2,106,225 1,235.961

Rotwoen 1 Between 2 lota con
Aso' Wil ang 2 and & Over b tractual Carying
satuary 1, 2020 yoar yoars yoars Y0E"S .57 NOws  amrount
Bord 17,235 17,235 284,280 — 38,750 242455

Q-ernor-currert

imerest bearnirg

labrties 198 ‘24 448 477 5,547 4,407

Lezse hatilites 47,7086 4046 05135 48239" 675893 466,870
65,139 57,880 289,863 487108 999,990 713,732

Amort
satana’®
1SSUC
discount Jese
and bo-  Penaity . ?';::;
Casn  -owng ca’yics Accrued E,‘r‘mfgn
ONEI2020 fows Costs TINation  Interest - fee-ces 377242020
Bard 250,381 -277982 7.545 8,595 a8 — -
O:her
ron-currert
Dorrowigs 4407 3093058 — — 1,453 209 825127
Other shor:
ermpor-
rOWIrgS — 20060 — - 249 — 20309
254788 551136 7545 8,595 23163 209 845,436
Casnard
cask egLiv.
aleris_ 239,643 -'88,900 — — — —368 50375
239,643 188900 - - - -368 50,375
e tasn
trarges
AMo‘153
tion of
Ss.e is- i;'*:":'
co.nt and r?':ﬁ;
DOTOW NG ACTUCC gy nar e
CYCNIES oa Tows costs alerest - L D
Bond 248,729 -17.617 2,08 - 1-1 — 25038
Otherlong term
borrowirgs ‘3552 -'0.007 —_ 862 — 4407
262,181 -27,624 2,081 18,050 — 254,788
Cash ard cask
equivalents 249868 -—'0.376 — — '5' 239,643

249,868 10,376 - — 151 239,643
Market risks

Apart from interest rate r'sks and currency rsks, whick are described above,
the Company 1$ also subject to price risk related to changes in ‘ar va'ue of the
nyestments in other shares and participations These investments, normally
the resut of eguity fnancing in earty stages of cortaim hotel praects, aro das-
sthed an dvaitable-for-saie investments with changes in fair value recognisea
in other comprehensive ircome  "he Compary s also sJbject to price nsk
from changes In far value on FX swaps, with fair va ue recegn:sed through
seaftor loss, an from changes i fier valus on denvatives used tar hedaging
The fair value change on FX swaps and fee hedges outstanding on December
31, 2020, was net TEUR — (22) and TEUR — (-131) respectively The real expo-
sure to the Company 1s, nowever, Imited as tne contracts mature from within
one week to less than one year

Fair value

=X swans are class Fed as hetd for rading wirh changes in fan valuc receg-
~ised npref 1o foss Fairvatuc changes oo der vatives ased ‘of hedging (cash
“aw mecgesl @ e recogiised tother eoprehensive iIncame The far value s
obtained from hanks which have derived the fair value through calculattons
based on market interest rates and market FX rgtes Other shares and partici-
vatian~, classried as avadacle-for-sale investments with changes in fas value
recognised in otner comprehensive iIncome, are measured at fair value, based
ot discounled  asitflow ahalyses
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Cont. Note 4

The followsng "ablke provides ar anatysis of tna~cial instroments nat are
measured subsequent to imual recognition at farr value, grouped into Levels 1
o 3 based on the degree to which the farr value s ohservanie Level fair value
measurements are those dernved from quoted prices [unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or labiities Level 2 far value measurements are
those dernved from inputs other than guoted prices Included within level 1that
are ohservabie for the asset or liability, either directly (e as pricesj or indi-
rectly (e denved from prces). Level 3 farr value measurements are those
dernved from vatuation technigues that include inputs for the asset or [1ability
that are ngt based on observahle market data (unobservable inpuls) The mamn
anpraack used by 172 compasy for this curpuse 1s discounted cash flow Tne
key assumptions for tne catculations are similar to these described in Note 6,
“Imparment testing”

As of Do 312020 ieve 1 Lover?  Leve 3 Tata-
Firarcial gssets &t fair value through

olrer comprekersive income - — 5,196 5196
Total - — 5196 5196
As ot Dog 312019 vovell  Leve 20 love 3 Tatal

Firarcial assets at fair value (rrough

1oty and koss - 22 - 22
Dernvauves used for bedgirg -3 - -13°
Frrgrcial assets at far value ihrowgh

o:ter camprebars ve ncome . — _ - 5180 5_‘80
Total ) ) o — w9 5180 S.OM

Fnanc a. asscls
atfa-vauc
nrougn other

Assets measared at “arvalue comarenensive

sascd an Leve 3 ncore Tota
Opening balance as of Jan_1, 2020 5180 5,180
Ir gther comprerers ve income

G By oxe gL dilerences . 6 16
Closing balance as of Dec. 31,2020 7 8196 5196

For other (nanaal assets anc fnarcailas iics. measured ot amortised cost
1" the balance sheet, tre car-yIng amaunts in the Frdneial siaterments appox-
ate the for values as they mature witmie oo e yearn bear a floatiog interest
ar have other terms and conditions considerad 1o be equal or close to equal to
marke! condibons

Categories of financial assets and liabilities
Thes carey ng ominents of different cateqones, as definer in 1AS 39, ot finan-
cial assets and habilities, December 31 were as follows

_ AsoTRer 3

TELR 2020 2018

Financial assets at falr value through profit and loss

Otfar cLITer: nor-Irierast beanng receivables — 22

Derivatives used for hedging

Direpvat ve Tha cgi imst-umehts — Cutren assels — 3

Derval ve g rpaliost-umeris — currert hahiltes —

Financial assets measured at amertised cost

Qrherlong-term irteresi-bearing recavables 39,850 24835
O:rer org-lerm nor-~terest besrirg recevables 2902 1207
Accouris recevables ‘7,798 725
Otrercurrer; ror-irieress-nesnrg receivables 52324 23236
Qirercorrertirteresi-hearing recenabies T353 5533
Oriker soriaerm irvesimer:s ‘537 2,068
Cast arc cas- equivalers . o 50,375 239542

- = 166138 367773

AsofDec 31
TELR 2020 2019

Financlal assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other shares ard parlicipators 5186 5,'89
5,156 5,180

Financial liabllities measured at amortised gost

Bord — 242455
Other lorg-term irterest-bearirg liabihnes 817.070 4,407
Qrrerlorg-term ror-interesi-teanrg labilines 355 423
Accouris payatiies 74,556 ‘30,955
Other cLrrentintertest-pearing hatihiies 20060 —
Other currert ron-interes-bearirg habikiles 34,937 24,121

946978 402,361

Effects of hedge accounting on financial statements
The effects of tme foreign currency relatac nedging nstruments on the groop s
Qnahcisl positios and performance are gs follows

As of Dee 3

“ELR 2020 2019

Foreigr currency forwards

Carrying amourtitabilizy) — -3

National arourt - 970
Jan-Dec  Jen-Dec

MatLrity date 202G 209

hedge rato . 1 o

Capital structure

adis -an defines s cap tal as cquity ane net dobt, whore net debt s externadl
borrowing, ncluding the use of overdraft faciities, mimus cask ang cash
e wilenis The objective < o hiave an efficien capntal stuclure, covsider ng
both tme (narang needs of Lo Grous and T seateholcers’ return. o
achieve this, tre long-term policy 1s to distnibute approximately one tmurd of
the annual net income as diviocend and to mantain a small net cash position
and suficient credit taalines Depending on the fnancing neads of the Caim-
pany. dindends may be adjusted or new shares :ssued At year-end 2020 the
equity amounted to TEUR 14531 (TEUR 148,785) and tne net debt to TEUR
782,149 (2,829}, excluding lease liabilities

Financia! risk management - Parent Company

Joint nsk management i1s applied t© all urits ' the Group The Parent Com-
sany forms a relaively small sart of the Group There afe no maierial dirfer-
ences between the risk management applied for thre Parant Company and
tnat applied for the Group Full application under IFRS 7 regarding quaiitative
and quanttative risk infarmat on 1s therstore nol presented separately for the
Parent Company

Note 5 | Coit cal Judgements and esumates

The prepaat on of tnancial statenents and apolicat.on of accoust
are often based on the management’s assessments ar an estimates and
assumplions deemed reasonabie and pruden: at ihe ume they gra made
Zelow 15 ar averab cesoption of e arcounting pol cies affa e oy such
Imuates ar assoemrpians that aie cxpediod 16 have the most sign foant
npsct on Ratason’s resotled earnigs and fnancal posilic:

Reportimg <of 20sts far deted Benct [ perSians are oased an goluanat osh-
mates derved from assaumotions apout discountrate, expectedreturr on man-
aged assers fulore pay inclcases and nf'ai

[




Note 6 | Key sources of estmation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estima-
bonan ertasily al the end of the rezorng penod, thal could nave a signit:eant
nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
Fabilites wettin the next f nancial yea:. are discussed here below

Impairment testing
At 2ach balance shee! cate (closing date), a review 15 conducted assessing
any indication that the company’s tangible, intangeble assets and cantracls are
impaired and fthis s the case, the recoveraole amgount of the mndividual assets
and contracts {or the cash-generating unit to which they belong)is calculated
in order to determine whether imparrment exists Each hotel contract1s consia-
arod 3y 3 S0parate cash generating contract

The merhad wsed for teshing assets i use w the disen, otec eqash flow tech-
mque (DCF} using the internal pre-tax discount rate (Weighted Average Cost
of Cap:tal} which 1s recalculated regulary Atyear-end 2020 a discount rate of
8 2% was used when ascaunting “ulu-e £ash flows in Euro zone Denmare,
Norway, Sweden and Switzerland [If the net presentvalue shows a ret present
value NPV} that s below the carrying value, ther impairment s considered on
the related 1angible and intangible group of assets

The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are discount rates,
growth rates ard expected changes n occupancy and room rates and tirect
costs during the period Changes in selling prices and occupancy anc drect
costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the
-nar<et Der ved from the mast recaoni Ninancal hudgets soprove$ by manage-
meant the group presares cash flows over the refated length of cac respe:-
tive contract normally ranging from 16 to 2Q years Each indivdual hotel con-
tract has been valued separately, lakirg inlo account the remainirg contract
term and the applicable commercial terms

The expected cash flows tor each Lt take into account the budgeted ! g-
ures for 202" a~d projected ‘gures for 2022-2023 The long term growtn n
revenues, costs atd preAt margins follow sirmilar develon=ent satlern as the
change mn local consumer orice INndex N ine with the histonical growth rates
oxpor enced in those reqie=s excent when justif o otherwise by ather fac-
lors Such factors ingluce ongarg bugs er tgmnnflatise mprovemg-te market
RevPAR, bulding up of revenues due 1o renoval or works carned out to main-
tain the hotels ata certain standard, revenye turnaround ard cost restructuring
programmes and impac: of rebranding

When required, write downs have been accounted for During the year,
write-downs ol TEUI 29 506 3 9801 of fxed assels reluted Lo leased oo
were recogrised as a result of imparrment tests The impairments were pri-
maily the result of lowered market growt~ expectations The assets have
been written-down to the calculated value In use

In aaditior, intangible gssets of TELUR 37,498 (—} nas been wriiten down,
please see further Note 17

Portfolio management, a revision of plans and project-ons for loss-making
hotels or a setback in the Cowd 19 development, with major impications or
the performance of the company's hotels, may lead Lo a renewed assessment
of the carrying value of both tangible and intangible assets

Assessment of cnerous contracts in management agreements

A similar method as for :/mpairment 1s appled 10 test If management agree-
ments are orrerous and, if applicable, a provision 1s recorded A provision of
TEUR 1,634 {—) has been recagmsed for an onerous management agreement
In Western Europe with shortfail guarantee during the year Portfolie marage-
ment, a revision of plans and projectians for loss-makirg hotels or 8 setback n
the economic recovery, with major implications on the performance of the
company's hotels, may lead 1o a renewed assessment

Leases
In determiming the lease term, management considers all facts and circum-
stances that create an econemic incenlive to exercise an ex1ension option, or
not exercise a termination option Extension options {or pericds after terming
tion apticns) are only included in the lease term if the lease 1S reasonably cer-
tain to be extended [or not terminated}

For hotet leases, the following factors are normally the most relevant
Af trere are s.gniicant penall eos 1o terminate {or not exterd), the gro.p s
typically reasonably certain to extend {or not termmate)
- If any leasehold impravemoen(s are expedcted to rave a sigraficant reinaiming
value, the group 1s typically reasonably certain to extend {or not terminate)
- Otherwise, the group considers other factors including histoncal legse dura
tions and the costs and business disruption required to replace the leased
asset

As at December 31, 2020, all extension oplions for hotel leases have been
included In the lease lability since 1t 1s reasonably certain that the leases wil:
be extended

To determine the Incremental borrowing rate, the group uses a burd-up
approach that starts with a nisk-free interest rate adjusted for credit nsk for
leases neld 2y the Groep ana makes adustments speciic to the lease e .
term, country, currency and security

The Group 15 exposed to ocotential future increases in lease payments
pased on an ndex, which are not \ncludec in the lease ability until they take
affect Whon adustments to icase payments based on an index take effect,
the .ease llability 1s reassessed and adjusted aganst the right-of-use asset

Deferred tax assels

Jeferrec taxis tecocnsed or femoracy diferentas betweeon steles ard tax-
aple income and on unutihsed tax losses carned forward. The valuation of tax
losses carned forward, and abibty to utilise tax losses carrned forward, 1s based
on estimates of future taxable iIncome The assumptions used In estimating the
future taxab'e Income are based or those used N the ImMpairment tests Dunrg
2020 deferred tax assets on losses of TEUR 6,527 were written down follow-
ing reviews of the likelihood to utiise tax losses carned forward Duning 2019
deferred tax assets on losses of net TELR 1,032 were recegnised following
reviews of the likelihood to utilise tax losses carned forward Portfolio man-
agement, a revision of plans and projections for ass-making hotels or a set-
back In the econoruc recovery, with major mplications on the performance of
the company's hotels, could tnigger a need for further assessment of the
recoverabiity of accumulated tax losses carry forward and therefore also on
tre carrying value of deferred tax assels -urthermore, changes n tax rules
and regulations, for examp.e a reduct:on of the income considered taxable,
the right to deduct expenses, or restrictiors on loss Ut isation can also trigger
a need for further assessment of the recaveraty ity of the tax losses carry for-
ward and the re ated deferred 1ax assels

Assessment of the off-baiance sheet commitments

For management contract commitments, the Company Gisc-oses Its max.-
s capped T hghogl exiosure relalod Lo all - anagement agreeme:sls that
carry a ‘mancial comenitment Howevel of e maximus exposute presently
disclosed [see Note 36), the annual costs are J.st @ small part of the maxi
mum commitment

Prowisions

Stovisions arc made when any probable and quantifiazie sk of boss atinbuta-
nle to disputes 1s judged to exist Provis-ons for claims due 1o known disputes
are recorded whenever there 1s a situation wnere it 1s more ke.y than not that
the company wl have an obligatior to settle the cispute ard where arelacle
estmate can be made regarding the outcome of such dispute
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Notg 7| Reverue

Note 10 | Payroli cost, numbe- of employees, elc

Operating Revenue per area of operation
fa-the Yog- Ended Do 31

TEUR 2020 2019
Rooms reverue 187733 54891
Faod & heverage revenle /6,141 226,382
Crher hote! revenue 15,462 22.883
Hotel revenue 7 239,336 79;,176
Fee reverue 56.534 ‘44,044
Cther revenue . 36,222 57106
Total revenue ) 332,092 999,326
Specification of Fee revenue

Management fees 13.989 35,056
Inceruve feas 7436 34530
Frarchise fees 8,247 ‘7699
Markelng ‘ees 13.258 33,333
Terrurauon fees 549 2,96
Qtherfees B “3,005 21230
Total ) 56,534 144,044

+ Thelingiterm "Other hotel revenue’ consists of complementary hotel revenue
sucn as revenue from parking, pool, laundry and gym

+ The line tem 'Othe- revenue’ cansists of complementary groug revenue
such as admiristration revenue and revenue frorm shared service centres

Note 8 | Government grants

f @ 1he Year knded Do 3t

TFLR 2020 2018
Gaverrmer: graris -ecogrised as oiher .ncome ‘0136 -
Governmert g-ants oifsett ng oersonel cos; 27303 -
Government grants offsettnyg rental exoese 224 —
Total 59,520 -

Note 9 | Costolgoods soud for food & dninks
ard other related expenses

__Fortie Year f aded Dee 31

TELR 2020 203
Cost of food 9.885 30.987
Cost of beverage 2,633 803
Cos: ot other ircome v €.884
Cos: of other goods sold ‘98 659
Cos: of ielephone, fax, rerret . 2'8 248
Total - 14,692 26,789

» The'ne item 'Cost of ather ircome’ corsists of var ous costs diect'y related
1o 'Other hotel revenue’ and "Other revenue’

Payroll cost Fortne Year Ended Dee 31
TEUR 2020 2018
Salaries m037 20585
Social security 25.574 35.6%
Persion cosis o 5.986 7604
Sub-total 142,597 241,354
Cther porsonnel costs ([other beneits -1 < nd),

ireludirg contract labour cosis 30.854 57649
Total 173,451 315,003

These cosis are included n the ire personnel cost and contract labour In the
income statement

No remuneration has been paid to the Beard of Directors in 2020 (TEUR 94 1n
2079} Radisson has entified the Exec.t ve Commitice and the CEQ as koy
management personng!

Remuneration of the Executive Committee {incl. the CEQ)!

FOENe Yoar Lrded Jec 31

TiuR 2020 2019
Base remLnergion 3,751 3307
Vanable remureranor 388 2374
Reteruon borus 1335 995
Sens an cost del nes <ot butios pian ‘66 302
Fousing, schooling ard compsny car 524 502

1} The tab c anove snews the gross aTounts One remoor of the Frecutve Comrmitice
was ‘emuaerated on o et 035 5 Apart fror te rmoact of cnanges ntie agreed Jaaon
e FanT Ievels, e s

shoet_cprato S Ay Also g o yeR ves dor o
specia tax teatTent -uce i Be g um Regard ng mumocr of 0¢rsers n the Execatve
Comrmittee, see Stiow

Tne variable remuneration of the members of the Executive Committes 15 subject
to accrudis each year. The basis for the annual var able remuneration scheme for
I rembie » af the Executve Corrutioe 1= ing ol asd pessonal perfarmasce
sbiedtives The st inanoisl obiectve which regrese: ts 40% of the tuel varabile
apperlumiiy s defined as the level of carmings before mterest tax, depreaat o~
Ang amaortisation (EBITZA} achieved in the year The second Franc al ahjective
wh oo represcls 40% of the wotal var able spportuoity, s dof ved as the level of
CArTTLS after rerest tax, degreca’ien and aorusat on reb ooty acheeves e
the year. The maximum ver able opportunly depends on the executive's role and
15 capped to between 60% and 200% of the annual base remuneration. The
related vanable remuneration costs recorc¢ed n the P&L as of the end of the year
cepresest the Dest estimeale —ade at ine balanoe seee! dates The foal vaahle
romurerAl o paylnenl s depsodent on cer ditorn atwll b ally e <ruwn gt
¢ 2dil subsequent to the release of the fina-c al styrements Trera’orn, vanable
remuneral o acoruedin aspec f Cyeal may se adusted - s.bseouent panods 3s
A eesult of the [am parameers dewating ftom he assu” phians mace at the bal-
ance sheet dales

The Excoutive Comm ttee partic:pate in fong-lerm cash settied incentve pro-
grammes for 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020, covenng & three-year performance
penod The vanable remuneration of the paricipants 15 supject to accruals each
year. The long-term vanable remyneration programmes for the part.cipanis “epre-
se~lapotential o carn a cercentage of Tme fixed a7 nal 2350 rsmune-atio”™ sus-
o0 0 meels g gt gus, Sul dutiievasie sredefnec fndmeoal and oseratiosai
performance abjectives Depending on the level of perfarmance ach eved, mul-
t-year vanable remuneration can vary from no vanable payment up 1o 100% of tne
Cxed dnnudl Ddse retes eral on for Excoslive Comimittee men bers and gy to
200% for the CEQ The 2017 programme was parually settied in 2020 and tre
amourt paid out has been incluced in the table above

In 2016 tre AGM approved a long-lerm ecuity settied performance based
ceentive pregrat me o be oUered to execo o ves with Rag sson Dae o e
—ardaieoy pub € affer "o the sharenclcors af Radisson. toe Board o Directors
decided in 2013 to replace 1€ eguity settled incenuve programme with a cash
setlled programme Two currert members and two former membpers afthe Fxec-
utwve Committee participatea in the orogramme The programme was settled -«
20%9 and the amount pa d cut Pas beer included n the 1ab'e 3nove




n 2020, the Board put in place a retention bonus programme for 2020-2021,
subject to certain conditions. The cost recagnised i 2020 for the Executive Com-
mittee members participating in the programme has been included in the table
above, In 2018, the Board put in place a retention bonus for 2018-2019, subject to
certain canditions. The costrecegnised in 2019 for the Executive Commitiee mem-
bers participating in the programme has been included in the table above. In addi-
tion, for one Executive Committee member the Board also put in place an addi-
tional performance based bonus for 2018, 2019 and 2020, which may vary from Q
up to EUR 50,000 per year and with up to an additional EUR 150,000 based cn
cumulative performance in the years 2018, 2019 and 2020.

In the event of a change In scope following a change in control, the CEQ can
exercise his right to terminate his contract within the firsl six months afier such
change in scope event. In that case, the CEQO will have a right to a notice period
of six months with centinued payment of base remuneration and contractual
benefits as well as full entitlement to the annual and long term incentive payment
and, in addition, a severance payment equal to eighteen months' base remuner-
ation and contractual benefits as well as the annual and long term incentive pay-
ment for eighteen months, both at target fevel.

For other members of the Executive Commitiee the contracted notice period
for termination of their agreements is between zero and six months. Additional
contracted severance payments are calculated based on between six and eight-
een monihs' remuneration.

The average number of employees in Radisson’s companies was
2,270 {4,248} and is split as follows:

Mo tae Yoa- Faded Dec 31

2020 2018

Men Worroen Mcn wWormron
Dermarg 4 99 62 146
Norway 195 ‘B2 418 367
Sweder 4 17 202 263
Urited Kirgdor 7 189 421 475
Germany 77 19" 343 352
Frarce 77 ™ 165 123
Spain 49 49 25 20
BelgiLm 88 84 28 1%
Otrer 156 137 253 234
Total 1.4 1,129 2,119 2,129
Total men and wormen 2,270 4,248

As o Dec 31 o
2020 R Lt

Men Wonon Men WoTan
Mermbers of the Board of
Directors! 7 2 7 2
Execuive Commitiee
fircludirg CEQ) [ : 6

1) Including two Ta.c oTp oyee represetatives © ected by te Swod shaaour organisa
tion

Note 11 | ctreroperating expenses

Forthe Yea- Pnded Dec 3t

TFLR 2020 2019
Fees for rayally, marketirg, reservatiors, rertals ard

licences 10 Radisson Haspitality irc. (see hate 34) ‘4,'49 2055
Erergy cos's 16,633 24 335
Supplies 5833 12,402
Markelirg expenses 26582 83,052
Ex:erral fees 34,498 49 270
Laurdry ard dry clearing 6,409 16,80
Cartract services ard mainterarce 4,440 4,753
Aagrunisiration costs 4,314 R
Communication, travel ard trarsport 5615 "2.594
Operating equipmert 1204 3,273
Rer:als ard hcerces 12,445 0,639
Properiy operaling expenses 4454 765
Otrerexperses 205" 12,419

Total

168,087 282,738

Note 12 | Insurance of properties ard property tax

Fortie Year Ended Dec 31

TEUR 2029 2019
Property and miscellareous 1axes 7.398 ‘2865
B.ildirg irsurarce o 1675 *,536
Total 9,073 14,201
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ioti'l3 | Leases

This secticr proviges information for leases where Radisson 15 a lessee
For accounung principles applied, please see Note 2 and Note 3

Right-of-use Assels

Machnery

Landard  and cgup
TEUR Da1dngs ment Totsl
Cost
Balance as of 1 Jan. 2019 669,580 4,652 674,132
Addnriors 4,766 792 5,558
Remeasuremerts '0.704 239 10.943
Disposals - -394 -394
Effect of fare gn currer ¢y exchange
difterences 768% 8 7697
Reciassificat ans ~2199 ) — -2.90
Balance as of jan. 4, 2020 690,549 6197 695746
Addiziors 3,385 1,989 5384
Remeasuremer:s 45 525 — 45,525
Dizposals -620 —3n -1.43%
Effect of fore g ~urresey exchonne
differcrces —14,269 -6 —14,275
Reelassitoat ans o ~488 — ~486
Balance as of Dec. 31, 2020 724,094 6,369 730,463
Accumulated depreciation and Impairment
Balance as of 1 Jan, 2019 ~369,896 =255 =370,151
Deprecauar 2357 -.5629 —25.00
Dsposals — 34 341
CHecl ol ore g arrency oxeange
difereni e -3,8G9 -4 —3LH
Balance as of Jan. 1, 2020 ~397.276 1,447 398733
Deprecianar -25.654 -.384 -27.038
Write-dowrs ard roversals of wrize-downs -13727 - -13,727
Disposals 468 gt 1.279
Effect of fore gn curre oy exchenge
diftorenres 6778 3 6,781
Balance as of Dec. 31, 2020 —429.44 -2,017 -431,428
Carrylng amount
As of Dec. 31,2019 293,273 3,750 297,023
As of Dec. 31, 2020 294,683 4,352 299,035

Amaunts recogused ~ the statement of profit cricss

TEUR 2020 2019
Vanable lease payments (iInCluded i rertal expense] 18,167 7195
Low-valLe assels lease paymeris (inciuded e rental

expense] 1,27 1306
Srori-term lease paymer:s {ircluded ir rer:al

experse) 947 1063
Deprec:atior charge of right-of-use assels (irciuded

i depreciatian and amarisaronr experse) 27038 25099

Gaih frammadifcation of lesse agreements anciuded
In cosis due to lerrIration of cortracs) — —1.385

ense} 75N 19,331

interest experse g-cludec infina~c

Thie statesenent ¢
leases

casti How shows tha fgllowiig; amau - ts refating (o

TELR 2020 2019

Vandble lease paymeris, low-value assels lease pay

ments, shorl-term lease paymen:s 20,385 ‘73564
Repayments of lease hablihes 10776 28,695
Irierast paid an lease abilites _17.97‘. XY

Per December 31, 2020, Radisson had 58 (eased hoteis n operation. The foflow-
ing provides an overview of the expiry of the main property lease contracts for
those 58 hotels

2020 2019

Nurrer ot NamIerof

Icase agreements casC agreerents

Yoar oxp NG Year X0 " g
202 — 2020 -
2022-2026 & 202°-202% 5
2027-203' 13 2026-2030 “
2032-2036 23 2032035 24
2037-204" 2 2036-2040 n
2042-2046 4 2042045 4
2047-205 —  2046-2050 —

This secuon provides information for leases where Radisson 's a lessor

Future minimum sub lease nCome

Reverue from sub leases recognised in 2020 amounted to TEUR 2,500
2.636) The expreciod future sub lease payments o be recelved rom all f xed
rent agreements are showr in the tadble nelow

TELR 2020 2019
Withir “ year 2366 248"
"-5Syears 8.757 7869
A’:erEyeavs__ - ‘8,18 &383_
;‘tal T T 29,241 34313



Radisson Blu Resort Maldives

Note 14 | rrancalitems

Faortne Yea: Ended Dec 31

[EUR 2020 2019
Interest .Acame fram exter wal Enane aiins itutions 282 295
Irieres: income from other loans ard recevabies 2,475 545
Gair ar the sate of assets held for sale 834 —
Otner hngnaial income 142 122
Foreigr currency excharge gars — _ 40
Financial income 3,782 1,102 By
[
Interast o X se o exTernal fna clal nstrutians —233 -3
trieres: expense on lease habilites -17.97 9,33
Irteres: expense bord —'2.376 —7459
irteres: expense otber lcans ard payables 1702 -469
Borrowirg costs bond —15,227 =973
Wriie-down of other loars ard recevables ~4569 -59
Qtaer finencml expense -2479 -906
Foreigr currercy excharge losses -668 —
Financial expense -65.225 40,518
Financial income and expenses, ngt -61442 -329,415

Other firanc sl expenses are - eldted to bank charges ard similas items
Net gain/loss per categery of financial assets and habilities.

Fortnc Yoar Ended Des 31

TELR 2020 2019

Snacei asseth abt 1 value throaLe s 5o’ tand [ess -22 -62
Loans ard recevables ard tnane al hatsl es

megsdred al amorised cosl —61420 -39.354
Total -61,442 -39,416

Al interest noome and expenses -~ 2220 ans 20°9 a-c related to fira-aal
assels and hatiiies measured at amortised cost No interestincome n 2020
d 1 2018 was recey sed onimpaire T rdncial dsses

QTES TO THE GROUP ACCQUNTS
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Note 15 | Income taxes

Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Fo-the Ycar Erded Dee 31

Forthe Year Ended Dee 31

TEUR 2020 2019 TELR 2020 2019
Tax experse(+)Income({-) cormpnses Income tax recognised in
Currert 1ax expense(+)/income(-) 2430 ‘2124 Other comprehensive income:
Adjusimer:s recogrised in the cLirent year Current tax
N rglation o the cutrent tax of prior years 94 — 44 Anising on exchange differcnees -~ 809 -867
Defered tax experse{-jircome(-} relatirg tc ine Total 909 -867
arlgination and - eve-sal of temparary differences —-62.934 ' 0B4
- — — Deferred tax
Total tax expense -60,410 11,794
Ansirg or income and experses recagnised
in Otk er comprerensive income
Remed..rement of cetr ed abliget or -49 —'89
;I'hhe total charge fo; :he \ffeli‘:r can be reconciled to Ariming on xenang e diferenes _247 _
e accounting profit as follows:
ap Gans and losses on cas- flow ~edges 28 -49
For the Year Endod Dee 31 T
e Total -267 —238
TELR 2020 2019
The o z flec. taxt was 2% (35%)
Frof tlass hefore tax ran cur tinwing operatians -288.449 33.780 he average cffechive tax rate 21 :
Ircome tax Ircome(—yexparse(+} calcLlaled alire
local iax rate -70,338 .879
Effect of reven .o that 1s exemat o tyxation -284 —434
Fltec] of exircimes U gl are ol gececible m
deterT nng -axabic pront 7413 2535
Effect of tax [cases and tax offscts notrecog - ised
as defarrad tax assess - =25
Effect of nrev.ousty amecogrised deferred tax
aUnbutaole (o lax losses, tax credis or tempordry
thfferenees of pr a” years —-293 —-2,003
Elfect o deferred tax aalant es aue o the chanage
IP INCO™MeE tax rate -2.532 278
Fffect of Lilisat o of fas lesses cary forward prev -
Qusiy unrecogrised — -98
Write-dowrs of aefarred tax assets 5,527 -
Effect of wohe alding taxes 2.08 3,082
Tax cred: -2.75" —
Oiber o -324 -6
Sub total -60,504 13,208
AdjLsiments recogrised ir the Curreng year
related 10 1he cLrren; wax of pror years 94 — .44
Incarme tax expense recoghised in profit aor loss -60,410 11,794
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS{+)/LIABILITIES{-} ARISE FROM THE FOLLOWING: Recognised
A Ot
Openng  Recognsed n COTIMCIONs v Exchange Cosng
2020 D8.87e0 Druiie 25 ncemo afie Lmces baance
Temporary differences
Metlease obligaliors 38.35%8 -15.274 — ~792 23,292
Cashflow hedges 29 — -29 — —
Targible asseis —"122 4,266 — -292 2852
IMargibe assets -9.28" 7548 — - -1333
Provisiors a4 1 - - a4
DoLgiful recevanles 1494 99" — 4 2489
Uriaxed reserves -1.300 1349 - —-43 —
Persiors 1,030 52 49 " 1,27
Otter habilinies 829 —427 — 26 423
Qhercurrer: ror-interes:-bearrg liaoiliz.es . &0 3 — 18 X
N -1.084 20 1,097 28,980
Unused tax losses and credits
Tax losses 58087 54.0°8 247 -520 121832
58,087 64,018 247 -520 121,832
Total 89,228 62,934 267 -1,647 150,812



Rezegnsed

i Otner

Opening  Recogrmised n comprehensve Excnange Clos ng
2019 a8 Ance 20’0 ea ncome o Terepces ba ance
Tempeorary differences
Net lease obliganions 39,785 —7498 — 37 39,358
Cash flow hedges ~20 — 49 — 29
Tanginle assets 968 -2.572 — 482 =22
Intargible assets -8.672 39 — — -9.28
Provisions bl 27 - — a4
Doubtful recewvanles “575 -B82 - N 1,194
Urtaxed reserves — -1300 — — —.300
Pens:ors 803 38 189 — 1030
Other habiliues bbb 204 — —4! 829
OtrercLrrent ron-interest-beanng liabiliies 152 —'48 — 56 omb
o B 34,428 —a,394 238 869 314
Unused tax losses and credits
Tax losses 54,395 3320 — 382 58.087

54,395 3,310 - 382 58,087
Total 88,823 084 238 1,251 89,228

Deferred tax balances are presented in
the halance sheet as follows:

As o Dog 31

TrUR 2020 2019
Deferred tax assets ‘5180 109,456
Deferred tax lapilives . . —348 -20,268
Total 150,812 89,228
UNRECOGNISED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
The following deferred tax assets have not
been recognised at the balance sheet date:

.. HhsofDez 3
TFUR 2020 2019
Tax losses 9.568 2,852
Total 9,568 2,852

The unrecognised tax 0sses have No expiry dale

Capital gains and osses on sale of shares in subsidianies, gssociates and
Joint ventures are narmally not subject to any taxation and there are conse-
quently no temporary diffcrences assoiatod with ose assets

Deferred tax assets attributable to tax losses carry forward are recognised
to the extent it 1s probable, basec on convinang evidence, that future taxable
profits will be available again-t which the unused tax losses car be wilised
stch as ‘or example that a previousty loss meki-g entity has turnoed i-to profit-
atdity or that a change n structure will goneraie taxabic nca™~e to gffset nis-
tonc losses When assessing the probability of utiisation, the amount of taxa-
ble temporary a.Ferences relaling 1o the same laxation act-onty as the tax
losses carry forward are taken into account as well as the projected future
laxaoie prolis The projecled Llure taxaole profils are estimated based on
budgets and long range plans, taking into account the expiry of contracts The
deferred tax assets attnoutable to tax losses carry forward are mainly found in
Belgium (TEUR 101,276), Germany (TEUR 1,602), France [TEUR 13,673, haly
1,025) and Denmark (3,962) Portfolic managemen!, a revision of plans and
projections for loss-making hotels or a setback in the economic recovery with
major implications on the performance of the company’s hotels, could trigger
a need for furtner assessment of the recoverability of tax losses carry forward
and therefore also o2 the carrying value of deferred tax assets In addition to
changes to future cash ttow projections, deferred “ax assels are dlso sensiive
to changes in tax rules a~d regulations

Note 16 ! soidand acquired operatons

Ther szle of the participzuon i Mangzha Nord SmbH was Tinglised in e
cog nmng uf 2020, resulung g gain of [oJk 884

The sale of the participation in Radissan Royal Hotel Beipng Co Lig was
“mahsed e the beginming of 2019 resulting n a gain o "TEUR 118

Radisscn has in 2079 alsc disposed its partcipation in PER Hotel, Ltd with
roampact on the prodit & loss statement

Rachsson has in 2018 acquired 20% n Fast Lane Hospitality GmbH Please
see Note 19 for further details

NCTES TQ THE GROUP ACCOUNTS
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Note 17 | intangble assets

Note 18 | tangibiesssets

Cther movemoents are ma-nly related to reclassf caligrs be ween 3.5

at-

egories and adijusiTents as resu:t of the trans‘er 10 a new accountng system

More information anout the wnte-dowrs
vided in Note 6

Other | conses Macnincry
ntangbe  andtrade Fixed angd Iwvestrents
TEUR assels Tarks Tola TELR astacatons  CQuoTent  aprogress Tola
Cost Cost
‘Balance as of Jan. 1, 2019 45533 55154 100,687  Balance as of Jan. 1, 2019 193,076 320,31 32128 545,515
Irvesimerts 70.296 29 70325
Oisposals -198 -36 234 Irvesimerts 2276 26787 23473 71,538
Efferet af ioreagn o.reacy exchianee difer- Disposals -10.480 —'3.464 - -29,924
ences 249 -13 238 Stfect of ‘ate oo currency
Reclessit cat ons o o 230 — 2,80 exchrange diferens es 37394 4,208 -20 7582
Balance as of Jan.1, 2020 118,070 55,134 173,204 Trarsfer from invesimer:s
Ir progress b He0 ALY —23.722 —
|nvestmerts 44 850 485 084 530834 Balance as of Jan. 1, 2020 213146 349,704 31,859 594,709
DCisposals =70 —54.463 ~55,164
Trarsfer ‘rom irvesimeris ir progress 79 3 82 Invesimenis 2.805 3.332 29668 35605
Fftect of fore gn currecy exchange Drsposals -6.5/5 =15,490/ —88/ —43.464
differerces ~632 — -632 Transfer from rvestimenr:s
OtFer movemer:s 6.762 _ 6.762 11 progress 16,327 16.67" -33.080 -2
Balance as of Dec. 31, 2020 167,428 486,658 654,086 00 lorcgurncy
exchange diferences -4.60° -7,063 —.880 —'3.644
. 5 —6,639 -1,650 g07 -7.382
Accumulated amortlsation and impairment O:rermovemer:s 6.63
Balance as of Dec. 31, 2020 214,263 345,087 26,387 585,737
Balance as of Jan. 1, 2019 ~28079 16192 -44.271 | - sienoal
Amarisation _4758 _a78 _6.036 Accumulated depreciations and impairment
Write dowrs and reversals of wnte-downs ~348 — -348 . — -
Balance as of Jan. 1, 2019 —131,229 -202,490 -2,6711 -336,390
Disposals 38 35 73 o
Eftect of 'oreqn o wriency exchange epresigmer 4 o
. Wrile-agwrs ard reversais ol
dirtarero e -1 - -1
fererces oz 87 -8B 85 wrre-dowrs _12.380 -33.5'8 —  -45898
Bal 1 - - o .
alance as of Jan. 1, 20 33,334 17,443 50,777 Disposals _1.00? _2309 932 3632
EReLlo tule O Cureney
Artcrisatior ~-B.653 -5.006 -".659 uxchange diferences ‘0,805 “9.060 - 29,865
Write-dowrs erd reversals of write dowrs — -37.498 -37.4938 Girer -2.370 —3.96 —1 -5,567
Disposals 1.589 54,464 56,053 Batance as of Jan. 1, 2020 146,175 -222,543 -2,904 -374622
Frlect af foreagn courre "oy exchanoe
drferences 333 - 3 hopreriation 4578 -30 568 - -45046
Other mavemeanis —6,457 B30 -5,627
- = - - Write-downs and revarsals of
Balance as of Dec, 31, 2020 -44,522 ~4,653 -49,175 write dowrs -5,088 ~7.827 -2.864 —15.779
Disposals 6,560 15,790 — 22,350
Carrying amount Sifect o fore go curency
cxcharge differenc - 3,196 5.586 5} 8788
As of Dec. 31, 2019 84,736 37,691 122,427 Qiher movemer:s 4760 -3,99° 4,298 5.767
As of Dec. 31, 2020 122,906 482,005 604,911 Balance as of Dec. 31, 2020 -151,325 -243,553 -764 -395,642
In 2020, Radissor has acquired contractual nghts to tre Radisson brands from
Radisson Hospitality, nc and 11s subs:diaries of TEJR 485,984 Tre assets are Carrying amount
amortised over 20 years The assets of TELR 37,498 related to the previous
master franchise agreemerts with Rad'sson Hospitality, 'nc nas been writter As of Dec. 31,2019 66,974 127,161 28,955 223,087
down As of Dec. 31,2020 62,938 101,534 25,623 190,095

recogrused durnng the year Is pro-



Note 19 | investmentsinassocisted companies

Qwnetsh o (%)

Ownershm (%)

Cary ngva Jo

Carry.ng va uc

as of Dec 31, as of Do 31 as of Dec 31, Acquiston du” Snarg of Fxchange  asof Dec 31,
TELR 2019 2020 2013 1gthe yoar I3 v dends HLOTe C eente 2020
Al Guesr —otel Compary S AE 2000% 20.00% *.354 — — 40 28 1.582
Fastiare Hospnalily GmbH 2000% 20 00% 4 — — — - 41
Afrnrerd Hotel Irvestmert A/S 20.00% 20 00% 84 — — -9 — 75
Total 1873 - 7 — 131 88 1,608
Ownersnip{%) Owic-sipis) Carry ngva uc Carnying va uc
as of Dec 31 asaf Dec 31 as of Dec 31 Acqusiton Sare of Exciange  Less asscls as of Dec 31,
TEUR 2018 2019 2018 dunng tne year 0 v dends ncore v ffe erge  neid forsac 2019
Al Quesir Antel Compary S AE 20 00% 20.00% f 22 — — 133 - 1,354
Fast Lare Hospitalily GmoH - 20 00% 41 - - Ll
Afnirerd Hotel Irvesimeart A/S 20 00% 20 00% 76 - — 8 - 84
prize boldirg GmbH 49 00% 49 00% 5,022 — -98 -973 -2 —4.0M1 —
Total 16,319 ;1“ o -96 o =772 -2 14,011 1,479
As o' and far
Summarised financial information for associated companies the Yes* ended Des 31
TELR 2020 2018
Total assets 5,897 "2.387
Total isbilives 2535 9,093
Nelassets 4,362 3,294
Group's share ir rezassets 872 659
Revenue 920 1238
Pralttoss from conrti "uins operal oas 687 383
Prof tiiass efter tox 636 383
Q:rer comprebersive ircome — —
Total comprehensive ircome 696 383
Group's snate I net profil “39 77
Tee affurence helween e carry ng value of the nvesiirerls and grodo’s s—are 1 nel assels amountng to 826 TEUR B200s uredurimantly due o goodwill

NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS
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Note 20 | oihershares snd paruicipations

Ownersnp(%)as  Owroersh prias Caryng Caimping

of of valae as of Excrange vaLe as of

TFUR Des 31 2019 Doz 31, 2020 Dec 31 2019 ciffe ence Dec 312020
Dornscus Emerprise Lid 13 41% 13 41% 4145 14 4159
FirstHotels COK S.CC 1.B2% 182% 013 7 1,820
orer — - 22 -5 17
Total 5,180 16 5,196

NCLte 21 ‘ Pension funds, net

Defined Benent Pergion Plans

These plans mainly cover retrement pensions and widow persiors where the
employer nas an cbligation to pay & lifeleng pension co-resoonding 1o a cer-
tain guaranteed percentage of wages or a certain annual sum Retirement
pe-sions are baseg on the number of years a person 15 employed The
employee must be registered in the plan far a certain number of years in order

The amounts recogrised ih e oalance sheet or the de‘inec bonetr
plans are dete‘mined as follows

10 receive full retrement pension For each year al werk the employee earns
anincreasing rrght to pension, whicn is recorded as pension earned during the
period as well g5 3n increase In pension obligations Some of Radisson's pen-
son plans for salaned employees in Sweden and Belgium are funded through
celned benel Lpes s oos plans w b esurance cormpanies

The movement in plan assets over the year 15 as cllows

As o' Do 31 Forthe year cndeo Oee 31
TFUR 2020 2019 TELR 2020 2019
Presentvalue of funded obligatiors 15.512 13.590 Opening plan assets 9.466 8,276
Fair value or plar asse:s —0.954 -5.466
be!i:fi/(.’-urplus) of funded élans 4,558 4124 Irterest rcorme 78 ‘37
Presert value of Lnfurded obligations 248 ‘88 Ccmponentsrecoénlsed i
Total deficit of defined benefit pension plans 4,804 4312  inprofitorloss 78 137
Impac: of rurimum fre rg requiremert/asset celling - —
Liabllity in the balance sheet ) 4,204 4312  Reressurementor the Dian assets

The moverent ir the aelined nenefit obligaion wer the year 15 as ‘ollows

Forthe yeaended Doe 31

TFUR 2020 2019
Gpening defined benefit obligation 13,778 11,661
Currertservice cast 982 90
I~ et @St oS! 109 E

Components recognised
in profit ar loss 1,091 1,093

Remeasurorrent he defitied be-ef $ obligation

Actuznal iga ns) lasses fra~ cha- ge o inancisl

F55UMPLIONS 330 1,859

Aciuar al {gains)/iosses ensing fror @xdenerce

gdjLsimerts 520 —445
Coniponents recognised
in other comprehensive income 850 1,414
Berefspad —'B4 -386
Excrarge (gairs)losses or foreigr plans 223 —4

Closing deflned benefit ahligation 15,758 13.‘;7;

Actuanal gains/{losses) ansing fram

_expenierce adjLstreris 655 658
Components recognised ’ :
in other comprehensive Income 655 658
Cortnbut.ans from employesr 802 739
Cortributions frorm plan paruciparts 84 76
Benefty poid —184 -3886
Excharge gainsfiosses| on foreigr plans 53 -34

Closing fair vaiue of plan assets 10,954 9,465

The sigrifiean tacluanal assumptiors were as tollows

____ _Aso‘Dec 37
TFLR 2020 2019
Discaur: rate
Belg .m 0E8% 0 65%
Sweder 065% 20%
Expec:ed raze of salary iInrgrease
Belgium 20% 20%



The senstivity of tv o defined beretit obhcaian to changes in the
weighted principal assumptions is:

Increase 0 Decrease
ssaTOL O assLMolion
Ciscount rate 0 50% 1.278 - 472
Expected rate of salary increase Q0 50% -549 506
Life expeciarcy {mer ard women) 1year -178 183

The sensitivity analyses are nased on a change in an assumption whiie hold-
ng all other assurptions constant Ir practice, this 1s unlike y to occur, ard
changes in some of the assumptiors may be correlatec

Plan assets are comprised as fo lows.

As ofDec 31

2020 2019 R
TFLR Quoted  Unguoted “%  Guoted ‘woguoted %
Equity invesimen:s 552 — 5 0% 435 — 4 6%
Bord irvestmer:s:
Governmart 6,686 —  610% 6,074 — B642%
Corporate 1989 —  '82% 1459 — 5 4%
Morigage 248 - 23% 53 — 6%
Properies — 1,479 13 5% — "345 C42%
Total 0475 1479 8121 1345

Tre plan assets are part of commaon funds used by imsurarce companies for
wves.dng T oerefore Infoirmotio of specfic Radizaon's asseis dilacdt o0 s o
avanah.e and it1s the nsurarce companies’ allocation of Its total assets that:s
anphed to Radisson's assets in the lanle above

Throngr s def ned henefit pens-on plans the group s expos-d to o num-
ter of rnisks, Toe mest sigoificant af which are

Assel volatiity

Thwe presentvalue o def ned benef thability 1s calcoated using 4 discauntrate
determined by reference to high quality corporate bond yields in Belgium and
government bonds in Sweden If the return an plan asset I1s below this rate, it
will create a plan Je'icit

Charges in bond yields:

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase tne plan haoil ty, how
cvet, s will oo part ally offset oy anincrease inthe return ere the plan's
debt :nvestments

Life expectancy:

The prese~t valuc 2f the defimea benent plan hatnlity 1w calculated by refes-
ence ¢ the best estimate of the morta ity of olan participants both duning and
after the'r employment An increase in the life expectancy of the plan partici-
pants will iIncrease the plan’s tability

Salary risk:
“he present value af the delined bene’it Labrdity 13 calculated by reference to
the future salaries of plan parucipants As such, an 1ncrease in the salary of
plan partic pants will increase the plan’s liaoility

Expocted contrbutions Lo posl-employmentuenel | plarss “or the yeesr end-
ing Oecember 3%, 2020 are TEUR 717

Treweghted average duretion of the defned hienefit asligation s 'S 2 years

Sxvecled matuniy analysis of und scoun'eu pension bene'tls

TELR

Year 2021 239
Year 2022 173
Year 2023-Year 2025 956
Year 2026 -Year 2030 362!

Defines Comtr cutan Pension Plans
These plans mainly cover retirement, sick and farmily pensiors The premi-
.ms are paid reg.laly duneg the year oy go.p companics to d-flereninsy -
ance companies The size of the premium s based on wages Pension costs
for the perniod are mcluded in the income statement and amount to TEUR
4,972 (6,048)

Far zlencal employees in Swede s the def ned berel obligat onsinthe 7P
2 plan for retirement and family pension (o family pension), are safeguardea
through Insurance In Alecta According to a statement from tre Swedish
Account ng Starrdards Counal, UFR1Q thisis = de-es benef Tulk-employer
alan For the fnanc ab year 2020, the Company kas nat had access 10 the
information necessary 1o accoun’ for its shared part of the plan’s ooligations,
plan assets and costs. ang a conseguence 't has not been possible to repaort
“he plas as g el ed benet! ulen The pension plan TP 2 which s sane-
gquatdeathroug™ -« swance nAlecta, s therefore reported as a defirced comtrr-
zoton plan The premum tor U e def ned Benefit -otirement a~d fanily pen-
sion Is individually calculated ang 15 mntgr ala taking INto account salary,
previnously earned pension and a~t-cipated remaining senionty Expectedfees
next reporting perod for ITP 2 insurances, covered by Alecta, amounts 1o
TEUR 805 ({831) The Group's share of the 1otal contributions o the plan and the
Group's share of the totai number of active members in the plan s 0 024% and
0.02% (00398 and 0 024)

The collective consondauon level 1s the market value of Alecta’s assets as
a percentage of insurance obligations measured in accordance witn Alecta’s
actuara‘ assumptons, which do not comply with |1AS 19 The coliective con-
saudation level s normally allowed to vary betweenr 125% and 155% If Aiecta’s
callective consolidation level is less than 125% or greater than 155%, meas-
ures should be taken in order to create the cond-tiens o return the consohda-
tion levet within the normal range At low cansondation, an action can be to
alse the anreed prce for suscaphor and expansion of exist na bepefits A
high consohdation, ar action can pe to Introduce premium reductions At the
end of 2020, Alecta's surplus in the form of tre collective consolidation level
was 148% (148)
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Note 22 | cimeriong-term recenables

in some cases Radisson grants loans tc owners of the company's hotels, or
1o the company's Joint venture and associated companes in early stages of
new projects The terms for such loans vary, but n principle there 1s an
agreement on Interest on the icans and the repayment schedute 1s based on
tne project epening andg project progress Thecse related parties and

termsconcerming these loans are presented beiow No collateral was held as
security for these receivables and ~o recelvables were past due gl the end
of the reportng periods

Iroa 'ment &

As of Dec. 31, 2020 Nom.na oxchange ATartsed

lzan Nom 1a vaug 08505 N 1081 Reaay Snortterm cost 1

Jol - amount Currancy A TEULR TFLR ment Sort o0 TEUR

Jizhaku Rubarenka 2.020 EUR 2,020 ~500 — -20 1,500

Afrinord Howal Investmert A/S 1865 EUR 1865 —.865 — — o}

Afrinord Hotel Investmert A/S 1495 uso 1,223 -1223 — — o

Sla{ltd) DN.H. 1512 EUR 1512 -500 - —-1.012 ol

Prigan DO O Beograd 40" EUR 401 —401 — — o]

Al Guselr Hotel Company S ALE. 520 EUR 520 — — ~20 500

RR #pls DT, LLC ‘7,850 EUR 17.850 — - - 17.850

Radisson Hospitahty Ing 20.000 EUR 20,000 — — — 20000

Bastior of the Deaf {Pty) Lid 898 EUR age -898 — — o]

Total interest-bearing ’ 46,289 -5,387 - -1,052 39,850

Mentor Hotels AS 800 EUR 800 — - — BOC

Depoesits and guareriees paid 202 EUR 2,02 — — — 2102

Total non-interest-bearing 2,902 — — - 2,902
Total long-term regeiyfbles 49191 -5,387 - —1.052 42,752

Impa ~nent &

As of Dec 31,2019 NoTina exCnange Amort sed

aan NoT 13 valae 05505 N l oa~ Repay ShartterT castin

o lerma WSy LT Tal o aTount Currency N TFUR TELR Tent auton TLUR

SIA Polar BEK Daugava 1750 usD *526 — —.526 - —

Jizhaku Rubarenko 2,620 EUR 2,020 - — -20 2.000

Afnnord Hatel nvestmer: A/S 98" usn 855 — -B855 - -

Afrinord Hotel ‘nvesimer: A/S 1,808 EUR 808 — — — 808

Afangrd Hotel ‘nvestmen: A/S *.365 uso 218 - — — 1.2°8

SIA{L:d DNR “513 EUR “573 - - -513 1000

Prigar DO O Beograd 400 FUR 400 — — — 400

Dyd! Opco BV 605 EUR *6OS - -'.605 — —

Al Quserr Hotel Company S A E. 500 EUR 500 — — — 500

RR Mpls OT, L LC 7850 EUR ‘1850 - — - '7.850

Ctrer 59 EUR 59 = — - 59

Total Interest-bearing ’ 29,354 — 3886 -533 24835

Mernior Hotels AS 800 EUR 800 — — — 800

Depasiis and guarariees paid 407 EUR 407 — - - 407

Total non-interest-bearing 1,207 - — — 1.207
Total long-term receivables 30,561 - -3,986 -533 26,042
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Note 23 | accountsreceivables

Note 24 | cihercurrentinterest-nearing receivables

As of Doc 312020

As of Dee 31
TEUR 2020 2019
Accouris receivables befare atlowarce
for doublful accourts 38.516 83.597
Allowarce for douoiful accourts -2.718 —'2.346
Accounts receivables net of allowance for
doubtful accounts 17,798 1,251
Acceunte Accodnts
recevanles reccivanios
auore "etof
alowance for P ovson alowance for
doubtful ‘o’ doubtu douatfu
As 0 Dec 31,2020 acCounts ATTOUMS accoants
Accour:s receivables rot overdue 4,237 —2.81 1,420
Accounis recevatles overdue
1-30 days 4.997 -893 4104
31-60 days 4,351 -972 3.379
1-90 days 3.447 —215 2,532
Mare trar 90 days 22,490 -16126 6.363
Total overdue 35,285 -18,907 16,378
Total ledger 39,516 -21,718 17,798
ACcounts Accounts
‘ocovan os roCo val 0%
before netof
@ owance for Provis an alowancc for
dounty  ‘ordountfu douat’u
As of Doo 31,2019 accounts acco.Js accounts
AccoLrts rece vab.es roioverdue 39,063 -2.072 36,99
Accolrisrece vabies overdie
1-30 days 20676 -952 "9,664
31 B0 days 8.146 -6'5 753"
6°-90 days 3.572 -533 3,039
More thar 30 days 12,200 ~8,74 4026
Total overdue 44,534 -10,274 34,260
Total ledger 83,597 -12.346 71,251
Movement in the allowance for
doubtiul accounts As o Doc 31
TELR 2020 2018
Balance at:he heginnirg of the year 12,346 —18,057
Arrousts wr tten aff cohing tie year 30 3,000
Amounts recovered during :he year 5,214 ‘4,862
Ircresse/decrease ir allowarce recogrised
in proft arloss -14,60° ~'2,149
T-anslat an u floreaae B ) -15 -2
Balance at the end of the year -1, 18 —12,346

Na collaterals are held as security for accounts recervables outstanding

Amortised
Counterpart cost n TEUR
Jhzhaku Rubanenko 20
SIA L) DNH f02
Al Quseir Hotel Companry S.AE 20
Redisson Firance Co Ltd 30
Total of current interest-bearing receivables 1,353

AsofDeg 31,2019

ATortsed
Coanteroart costin TELR
Jizhaku Rubarerko 20
SIALY DO NH 53
Rubyrock Co Ltd o 5.000
Total of current interest-bearing receivables 5,633

No collaterals are held as secunty for these recevables

Note 25 | cinercurrentron-inierest-nearing recevables

As of Dec 31

TEUR 2020 2019
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid rert 5,396 *0,574
Frepaid prope-ty tax 21 *.692
Other prepa.d experses 8.824 *2.062
- o 15.2a41 24;3
Accrued Income
Accrued fee income 963 6,742
Otre- aecried ircame 192 - 38r
2,155 10,613
VAT recevables 28,855 9975
Recevables rela:ed (o governmerial suppor; ‘5,658 —
Gther current nor-interesi-beanrg recevables 7.81 13,26°
Total ) 69,720 58.177
Note 26 | other snortterminvestments
Qther short-term Investments predominantly consist of cash in restricted

accounts and collsterals

Note 27 | cashanacashequivalents

Casr and cash equivalens at the end of -he firanc al year as shown 1 tne cash
“ow stateent can ho reconcted Lo the related terms nthe balance sheat as

follows

As of Dec 31
TEL.R 2020 2019
Barx accolns 49,782 238,715
Casnonbhard 593 928
Total :as;;r?\?dr 7carsh equivalents 50,375 239‘63

NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS
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N ote 28 | Assels classifiex as hela for sale

The assews ard labltes classiiec as held o sale are related o the 1%
Investment in prize Holding Gmbh

Note 29 | sharecapre

Issde caoital
Snarc caota Qthen paid in Snac caoital Ctherpad
TEUR 2020 capital 2020 203 ncap lat 2019
Cperirg balarce as of Jan 1 1,626 177124 "1.626 771124
Capital contributior — 85,954 — —
Closing balance as of Dec. 31 T 1,626 263,078 11,626 177124
Change n Cnangein
Fu ysadord nayshacs Date of resaluton nJmoe of snares shae capita
Tre compary is registered Mar 8, 2005 ‘000 000
Share sphit of ordirary stares Mar 22,2005 10,000 -
Share issue of ordinary shares Mar 22, 2005 89,000 89,000
Share 1ssue of ordinary shares Ozt "0, 2606 26,584 26,584
Share sph: of ordirary shares Oct "0, 2006 149,875,456 —
Borus ssue, witkout rew share ssue May 4, 2007 - 9,873.4°6
New shara 1ssue Jure 5,204 24386877 1625766

The 1otal share capital at year enc was EUR 11625768, corresponding to
174, 388.857 shares, giving a quota value per share of EUR 0 067 All issued
shares are fully pass Thore are no diffcrencesin classes af shares Eich ownes
of shares in the company Is entitied to vote for the full amount of such shares
at a general meeting, without any voting mitations

Note 30 | Farvalue -eserve - Cash-f ow nedges

Dividend per share

In accordance with the recommendation from the Board of Directors to the
Annual General Meeting 2020, the Arnual General Meeting decided to not
vay any dov dend Tor t-e fina-wal year 2019 The Boare of Directsrs proposes
12 tne Annual General Meeting 2021 that no dividend 15 to be paid for the
Arancad yoar 2020

TEUR 2020 2019
Qoenirg value as of Jar * -102 Fal
Fffect e gans and losses tecags sed in eguity dunng the year 358 —550
fax on effective gains and losses recogn sed n ocuty due ng the veas -79 2
Gaihs and losses reclass:sed out of 2cuily dur ng the yed -227 328
Tax on garrs ard losses roclassitiod oo af cgu oy oo s the yeear 50 =72
Closing value as of Dec. 31 - —16ﬁ
Note 31 | provsions
Rest-uctur ng and Onerous | oga

TEJR e gt on £oMt-acts canTs Oter Tota
Balance as of Jan. 1, 2019 4,658 - [ - 4,664
Additioral provisiors recognised 1500 2,100 1,200 - 4 8GO
RedLc: ors resultirg from remeasurerer: - 0 - [+]
Reducuors arsirg from paymer:s =4 - -6 - — 480
Balance as of Dec. 31, 2018 4,684 2,100 1,200 _ 7,984
Additioral orovisicrs recognised 425 634 150 36 2.245
RedLciors resultirg fror remeasurermeri -885 — — — -885
Reducuors arsirg from paymerss -1648 -100 =200 — —2,948
Balance as of Dec. 31, 2020 2,576 3.634 150 35 6.396

Restructuning and terminalion

The provision for restructuring and termination of TEUR 2,576 relates 1o 'reta-
tives taken on hotel level and on corporate :evel These cost advantage rt.a-
twves are taken to enatile migher compet t veness perfornan .o gro cost eff -
ciency trrough the developmert of new organisat:onal and operating models
that are opt.mised ard consistent acrass the orgarisation

Onrerous contracts

The provisior for anerous contracts relates ta |T system contracts whick will be
obsolete due to internal development of new systems {TEUR 2,000) and w0 a
management contract in Westerr Europe (TEUR 1,634)

_egal claims
The provisior for legal claims of TEUR 150 re ates to a case in Eastern Eurooe




Note 32 | Borrowings

Curent Nan cyrent
As of Dec 31 As o' Dee 3 Solit of bank overdralt
TELR 2020 2018 2020 2019 As of Bec 31 _
Borrowirgs fram related TEUR 2020 2018
paries 20060 - 796,000 - Bank overdraft faciinies grarted 5,000 25000
Bord - - - 242,455 Uilisation of bank overdraf ir guarariees —453 -340
Goverrmen:al -0ars - - 13.484 Uubsatior of bark overgraf: ircast -4.000 -
Bark overdraf: faciilies - - 4000 Bank overdraft facilities Jnullli-sed 547 24,660
Other borrowirgs 7 — — 4606 4,407
Tolal 20,080 - LAt 488,882 The committed credi faciliies, amounting to TEUR 5,000, can as per gen-
eral terms and conditions be term'nated with 30 days notice
The TEUR 250,000 sermor secured notes, 1ssued by the subisidiary Radissor
Hotel Holdings AB, were redeemed in August 2020
Tne company has secured borrowings of TEUR 815,060 from related par-
ties v 2020 In addit on, the company has secured bank barrowings of TEUR
17,464
Other borrow ngs of TEJR 4 606 4,407) are elated ta the inancing of rero-
vation investments in @ German hotel under a maragement cantract
No borrowing cosls have breen capitalised
Note 33 | crercurrentnonmerest-bearing labilities
Speciicalion ol ecoroed expenses and prepaid noome
_ AsofDec 3 L
TELR 2020 2019 TELR 2020 209
Prepaymear:s from customers 10,250 1326 Accrual for vacaluon pay ircluding social costs 9.528 1483
Accruad experses & prepaid -acamre 101,390 127,365 Accrusl for bonus irclucng social costs 2.1 4,34
Otter current ror-irterest-bearirg habiliies 34,937 24121 Other payroll aceruals 15,377 '6.473
Total 146,577 1-64,61-2- Accrual for erergy experses 4,085 5,243
Accrued fees "oy 2.2'9
Accrued rert 6,855 4,814
Accrued saies & marketlirg experses 3.450 1,69
Accrued irieres; experse 8306 7926
Accruals for toyally programs 1,695 2873
Otrer eccruad experses 37453 35.8C0
Prepaid income _ 1,47 1,862
Total 101,390 127,365
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Note 34 | reistedparties

Radisson Hospitality, Ine 1s a signiicent related party The tansactior s veth
Radissor Hospitality, Inc are split as follows.

Revease Qagrat ng cxpensces
TELR 2020 2018 2020 2019
Royalty fees, marketirg fee, reservatior fee and rertals & licerses 1,92 — 14,149 2055
Radisson Rewards 675 2780 777 5315
Recharged third party Cos:s — - 386 2.789
Joirt 1T projects “3.582 ‘5,697 3g0 24750
Other 54328 293 288 753

On December 31, 2020, Radisson had receivables of TEUR 54 relgted (¢ Radhs-
son Hospialty, Inc (33,.877) and current llabilities of TEUR 13,287 (107,953)

in addtion, Radisson had non-current interest bearing recervables on Radis-
son Hospitality, Inc and its subsicianes of TEUR 37 850 (17.850)

Radissen had current interest bearing receivables on Radisson Finance Co
vmited of TEUR 310 (-} .

Tne busmess relationship with Radisson Hospitaity, Inc mainly consisted of
operating costs related Lo the use of the brands and the Lse of Radissor Hos
pitaiity, Inc 's reservation system in addtion, Radisson Hospitality, Inc ooerates
a customer loyalty programme, Radisson Rewards, to provide customers with
ncentives Lo buy room nignts Loyally points earned when guests have stayed
at hotels are charged by Radisson Hospitalty, Inc 1o these hotels Similarly,
when points have been redeemred at rotels, these haotels are rembursed by
Radisson Hospitality, Inc

In Q4 2020, Radisson acquired the ownership of the brands

Radhisson Hospitality, Inc furthermore recharges costs that it has mcurrec
from thrd parties, mainly internet-based reservation cranress, to the hotels 1o
which these costs are related

Radisson Hospitality, Inc and Radisson alse cooperated in varous other
areas, such as a global integrated IT platform, global sales, brana websites,
revenue optinisation tools and purchasing These other areas did not, how-
ever, always lead to direct ransactions between the two comparies All trans-
actions are done at an arms’iength basis

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled In cash No
guarantees have beer given or received No expense has been recognised
in the penod for bad ar doubtful dents in respect of the amounts owed by
related parties

Per December 31, 202C, Radisson had interest bearirg uabilities to two
subsidianes of of .in Jiang Internaticnal Ho:dings Co TEUR 415,000 (—} to Silk-
ing Investments Co SARL and TEUR 400,060 (—) to Radisson Firance Co Lim
ited Thenterest payables related to these liabiites amounted to TEUR 1,904 (—)
and TEUR 6,402 (—) respectively

In additian to the above, Radisson nas a current liatility 1o the parent company
Aplite Holdings AB of TEUR 9,228(--)

Per December 31,2019, Rad'sson had an interest bearing recevable on one of
the subsidiaries of Jin Jiang International Holdings Co., J1d of TEUR 5,000

Joint vertures and associated companies

. _AsofbDec 3
THUR 2020 2019
Loans due from joint ventures and assocated
companies 3608 3526
Revernue (Managemert Fees) from joint ventures
and associated companies 5 220

Loans due fram Afrinord Hotel Investmen: A/S histed in table above and
amounting to TEJR 3,088 have peen fully impaired in 2020 The remaining
outstanding '0ans amounting to 520 TEUR {500 TEUR) are due from Al Quesir
Hotei Company S A £

More information aboudt shares n jont ventures and associates and the
loans to the ertties s discloseo in Note 19 and Note 22

Key management personnei
The Executive Comuinittee, ncluding the CEO 1s defired as <ey nanagement
personnel The rernuneralion to this group Is presented in Note *0



Note 35 | contngentlizbilities and committed invesiments

Conlngent liabihties

As of Der 31
TEUR 2020 2019
GLaraniees provided far managemert conracts” — —
Miscellaneal.s grarantees provided 453 340
Total 453 230

‘) Refer to Note 36 whero these amoants a'c aciuded m the tata max mum future caaped
gurantoe payTent

Under the lease agreements, Radisson s responsible for maintaining the hotel
building in good repair and condition over the term of the lease agreement
Under certair lease agreements, Radisson s required to invest an agreed per
centage of the hotel revenue in maintenance of the particular property Ifren-
avation warks for a period have been lower than whal s required in the lease
agreements, the renovation works will have (o be caried oul at g later stage or
settled i alternatve ways The total investments carried out oy Radisson may
therefore vary from year to year, but normally amaount o ca 5% of leased hotel
revenue

-tigatign
Radisson operates in a numoer of countries around the world anc 1s always
invelved in several complex projects and business relatianships where profes-
sional disputes on varous Issues can arise Most tmes these situalions are
resolved through negouations and discussions in some rare situations, these
disputes can lead to major disagreements or ¢laims of violation of law Provi-
sians for claims due o known disputes are recorded whenever there 1s a situ-
atior where 1t 1s more kkely than not, that Redisson will have an obligation to
settle the dispute and where a3 reliable estimate can be made regarding the
outcome of such dispute Radisson 1s not engaged in any judicial or arbitral
proceedings, Inc'uding those which are pending and described below or
known to be contemplated, which, In Radisson’s judgement, may have o* have
a mater al etect on Radeisson's Fnancial position aof crafitability turing 20220
The members of the Board of Directors have no knowledge of any proceeding
pencing or threatened against Radisson or any of the subsidiaries or ary facts
likely to gve rise to any itigation, claim or proceeding whick m ght matenally
a‘ect e [nanaal positios or bus.ness of Reg ssor as at Decemace 31 2020

A clarm of MEUR 49 5 against a Radisson subsiciary, as compensaton for
alleged wrongfui terminauon of negotiations of 3 management agreement,
wils e and was fist disrissed oy commetonl cous af Brussels n 2509
subsequently by court of appeat of Brusseis in 2019 The supreme court pas-
ually quashed the judgment of the court of appeal in 2020 and referred the
case back to the court of appeal of Liege for 8 new ruling on the case

An aglleged mismanagement and wrongful termination claim was made n
2017 vy the owner of a managed hotel, which nas been terminated by Radis-
sonin 2017 for owner's alleged matenal breaches of the management agree-
ment In parakel, the owner has brought criminal claims against several of its
emplaoyces at “he hotel, inchsding e gereral imanage- and the fnanciol con-
t-allet The owner hasfled v 2079 an a'briatian case for alleged mismanaye-
ment and alleged wrongful terminaticr by Radisson of the management
agreement in an amount of not less than MEUR &8 It 1s not possible to make a
sensible assessment of any provision based on the known circumstances The
mismanagement part of the claim iIf successful will be covered by Radissan's
insurance

An arbitration claim of MEUR 11 4 for alleged mismanagement and breaches
of the IMA has been lled In 20°8 py an owner of a mmanaged hotel H s not
possible to make a sensible assessment of any provision based on the known
circumstances The mismanagement part of the claim wil be covered by
Radisson's insurance

A trial on the interpretation of a preliminary issue on the charging basis for
utilities was Hedin 2219 ‘or aleased pronerty The judge ruled in 2020 follow-
ing tre lendlord’s interpretation Ar accrual has been recognised per Decem-
ber 31, 2020 1o cover the fnanaal consequences of the dife-e~ce ninterpre-
tation

Summary proceedings have been commenced in 2020 by the owner of a
managed property on the payment of the guarantee under the contracts An
accrual has been recognised per December 31, 2020 ta cover the amounts -f
the guarantee claim w-ll be successful

Note 36 | Maragement contract commitments

Under Radisson’'s management agreements, Radisson provides management
services to third-party hotel proprietors. Radisson derives revenue primarly
from base fees deter-mned as a percentage of total hotel revenue and incen-
tive management fees defined as cercentage of the gross aperating praft ar
acjusted gross operal ng zrefit af the ~otel operatiors.

In certain circumstances, Radisson guarantees the hotel proprietor a mini-
mur esull measured by an usted gloss operati ~g proft 00 some other finan-
c:atmeasure (8 "guarantee’] Under such contracts, in the eventthat the actual
result of a hotel 1s less than the guaranteed amount, Radissor compensates
the hotel proprietor for the shortfall However, In most agreements with such
clauses, Radisson’s obligaton 1o compensate for such shortfall amount s typ-
1ca ly . mited to two to three times the annug! guesantee (the "guarantee cap”)

As gt thie end of the year, Rad ssos granted a cerlam level of fnancal c o
mitment in 16 management contracts, as compared to 17 at the end of 2019
“he ma-ageTent cooiasts contain ng such frarcidal nsk for the graup will
expire as presentad in the table below:

2020 2019

NamBbe- of Numae- of

managcment management

Year agrecTonlts exprng Yoar AYrecrents exonng
2021 — 2020 1
2022-2026 1 20272025 2
20272031 3 2026-2030 3
2032-2036 5 203°-2035 5
2037-204i 4 2036-2040 4
2042-2046 2 204°-2045 2
2047-2051 1 2048-2050 —

The following table presents the Company’'s capped contractual obligations
under ali manage—aent conbiacts with f hancid gua-entees and shows the max
imum capped nancial exzasurao

Tota! maximum luture capped guaraniee sayments

TFLR 2020 2079
Total 28628 43,958

The capped guarantee payment includes the contingent igbilities as disclosed in
Note 35 (e Guarantees provided for management contracts) For 2020, Radis
son's costs for shortfalls under its management agreements with guarantees
amounted to TEUR 23,586 (1,212), they are ncluded in the line Rertal expense

Note 37 | audiors fees

TELR 2020 2019
PwC

Audi: gssigrments 1442 *356
where of PwC Sweden 489 524
Other audit related assigrmeris 476 47
where of PwC Sweden 74 3
Tax assigrmen:s 9 22
where of Pw(C Sweden — —
Qiterass grmenis 249 50
where of Pw(C Sweden I —
Totalfees 2,176 1,475
Where of PWG Sweden 614 526

Note 38 | rostbaiance sheetevents

Acquislun ol Radisson Asld Faailic

Per end of February 2021, Radisson acgured from its sister company Radissor
Hosgitality, Inc a group of companies responsible for the operation of the Radis-
son trand n Asia Pacil © Inciuded sn the transaction was alsa a portfoho of hotel
management contracts, directly owned by Radisson Rospitality, Inc, as well as
internal borrowings The acquisition vaiue of the acguired assets amounts to
TEUR 105,694 [he nansacion was fhandced through shiveheolders loans aned
contributions
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Note 39 | croupcompanies andiegal structure

Radisson Hospitality AB has the following subsidianies, joint-ventures, associaled companies and gther nvestments

As of Bee 31,2020 _ AsofDec 31,2019

Regsteredin Ownershia % Sharc capital  Ownershiaz % Sharc casitar
Belgium
Radissor Hospitalty Belgwm SPRL Brussels 100 MEUR 29 4 100 MEUR 29 4
Radisson Haspitalily Services BV Brussets ‘00 MEUROO 00 MEUROO
Czech Republic
Radissor Hoe| PragLe s.7 o Prague 100 MCZK 4 5 100 MCZK 45
Cyprus
DoriscLs Enterprises Lamited Limassot 134 MEUR 198 134 MEUR19.8
Denmark
Radissor Hotels ApS Danmark Copertager 100 MDKK 2120 00 MDKK220
Radissar Scardiravia Hoiel Aarhus A/S AarbLs 100 MDKK OS5 elel MDKK 0 5
Hotel Developmen: S.Africa A/S Coperhagen ‘00 MDKK 0 gele] MDKK “.0
Radisson Hotel Kiev A/S Copertasger 00 MDKK 10 00 MDKK 10
Rodissor Hotel iIrvest~er: Egypt A/S Copenrager 100 MDKK 10 100 MDKK * O
Radissor Russia A/S Copenhagen 100 MEUROT iels) MEURQ T
Ragissor Loyally Marzagemer: A/S Coperhagen ‘o0 MEUR Q1 Q0 MEUR D"
Radisson Carrersiore A/S Copertager 00 MDKK 2 4 100 MDKK 2 4
Radissor Hotwel Maragemen: & Developmer: A/S Coperrager le]e] MDKK 2 5 00 MDKK 2 5
Radissor Hasp.ialiy Denmark ApS Copenhager 00 MEUR B3O ‘00 MEUR 830
Afrinord Hotel Irvestmerts A/S Coperhagen 20 MEUR O 3 20 MEUR D 3
Radisson Royal Hotel Copentager ApS Coperteger 100 MEURGC S 00 MEURQ S
Radissor Scardiravia Hotel Copernager ApS Copenhager 100 MEUR 0.5 100 MEURQOS
Egypt
Al Quseir Hotel Company S ALE Nasr City, Caro 20 MEGP G380 20 MEGPEB O
France
Racdissor Resor: Frarce S AS PLieaLx — - 100 MEUR OO
Radissor Hospralily Frarce S A S PLtealx 100 MEUR 110 4 jelel MEUR 10 4
Royal Scardirawvia Hoel Nice S A S Nice 00 MEUR 01 00 MELR 10"
Raysl Scardiravig Hotel Marseille S 4 S Marsellle 00 MEUR OO 00 MEUR OO
RadissonLyor S A S Lyon 100 MEUR OO 100 MEUR OO
SARL Régence Plage Nee 100 MEURODO ‘00 MEUR OO
Radissor Collecuor tyor $ A S Lyor G0 MEURZS — —
Germany
Radisscn Hoteis DeLtschlard Gmbd DLisburg 00 MEUR 0 2 00 MEURQ 2
Radissor ReverLe Certer Certrat Europe Duishurg 100 MEUR OO 00 MELROO
Radissor Holel Hanrover GrigH Duisburg 160 MEUROD 00 MEWRGCO
Radssor Hatel Harburg Airport GmbH Duisburg 00 MEUR 0.0 00 MEUR O O
Radissar Hote! Kalr GmhH Dursbrig 00 MEURG O Halel MEUR OO
Radissor Hoe! Wiesbiader GrmbH Duisburg 100 MEURDC 0o MELROO
Radissor Hotel Berir GmbM Duisburg 100 MEUR OO 00 MEUR GO
Radissor Ho:el Karlsrube GmbH Duisburg 00 MEUROO o0 MEUR GO
Rad'ssor Hotel Frankfurt am Mair GmbH DuisbiLrg gelo] MEURCO ‘00 MELIRDC
Park Irr by Radissar Frarkfurt Arpor: GrbH DLisburg 100 MEUR OO 100 MEURODO
Parktrr by Radissor Siuiigar: GmbH Duisburg 100 MEUROG 160 MEUR OO
Radissor Shared Services Cenire DeLischlard Gmbh Duisburg 100 MEUR G 8 090 MEUR G 8
2gre Irn Muncrer Frarkfurier Rirg GrmbH Duisburg jelo] MEUR OO ‘0o MEUR GO
Parkire Morcrer Os: Gmbar Ouisbuig ‘ag MEUR G.O Nelsj MEUR O QO
Radissor Dusseldorf Medwa Harbour Haotel GmbH oLisburg 100 MEUR O G 100 MEUR 0O
ParkIrr oy Radissor NLrrberg GribH Duisburg 100 MEUR OO Nl MEURQQ
Mcrgohs hard GrmibH Frar«fur: — — 428 MEUR 00
Radissor Sales & Markeurg Certral surope GrmoH Doisburg o0 MEUR QD ‘00 MEUR OO
prize Halgrg GmbH Hamburg 91 MEUR GO 49 MEUR DG

Fas: Lare Hospiality GroM Berlie 20 MEUR O 2 20 MEURC 2



Reg stered in

As of Dec 312020

As of Dec 31,2019

Cwnershin %

Snaic capital

Owne-sn o %

Share capia

Italy
Radisson Hotel Milar 511

Radissor Callectuon Hoel, Palazzo Towning Clul Mitar 5 R.L

Radissor Collection Pote . Palazzahari SR L
Kuwalt

Firs: Hotels Company KSCC

Latvia

Radissor Hospialiy Balucs SIA
Netherlands

Radissor Hoe Amsierdam BV

Norway

Radisson Hospitaliy Norway AS

Radissar Howels Norway AS

Radisscr Hotel Atlanuc Stavanger AS {darmart)
Radisson Hoel Narge Berger AS (darmars)
South Africa

Radissor Hospitabiy Soutk Africa [Pry] Lia
RHW Maragemer: Soutrerr Afrcs (Puy Lid
Spaln

Radsson Hospiiaily Services Spair 5 o
Radisson Hotel Madrnd S LU

Rzcisson Red Madnd S L.

Sweden

Radisson Hotel Holdirgs AB

Radissonr Hosp ality Sweder AB

Radissor Hotel & Congress AB

AB Sirard Hotel

Royal Viking Hote: AB

Radizsor Arlardia Hotal AB

Radissor SkyCry Hole! AB

Radissor Royal Holel AB

Switzerland

Park irn by Radissor SwitZerland AG
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Turkey
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Radissor Hote's UK Lid

Radissor Hotet Marches:er Lia
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NOTES TQ THE GROUP ACCOUNTS

MEUR OO
MEURO O
MEUR O O

MK WL 400

MLVL O O

MEUR 0.0

MNOK 2490
MNOK 1.0
MNOK OO
MNOK 0.0

MZARCO

MEUROO
MEUR 3 5
MEURG O

MEUR 01
MSEK B 0O
MSEK O °
MSEK O 3
MSEK B O
MSEK 10
MSEK .0
MSEK " O

MCHF G "
MCHF &1

MTRY OO

MGBP 32 2
MGBF OO
MGBP OO
MGBPO O
MGBP O O
MGBP OO
MGBP 0 0
MGBP 0 0
MGBP O 0

MUSD Q0

‘00 MEUROD
‘00 MEJROG
‘82 MKWD 400
00 MLYL 0 G
100 MEUROG
100 MNOK 249.0
00 MNCK 110
‘00 MNOK 0.0
00 MNOKO.

74 MZAR 0.0

74 MZAROQO
‘00 MEUR 0.0
00 MEUR 3.5
‘00 MEUROC.0
00 MEUR 0.1
‘00 MSEK 18.0
100 MSEK 0.1
00 MSEX 0.3
100 MSEK 8.0
100 MSEK 1.0
‘00 MSEK 1.0
00 MSEK i.0
00 MCHF G1
00 MCHF 0.1
‘00 MTRY 0.0
100 MGBP32.2
‘00 MGBPO.O
‘00 MGBP 0.0
100 MGBPO.0
‘00 MGBPO.O
‘00 MGBPO.O
100 MGBRO.O
'00_ MGBPO.O
00 MGBPO.O
00 MUSD 0.0
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Note 40 | rioposed appropriation of Earnirgs

Non-restricted reserves in the Parent Company avallable for dividend are
{TEUR)

TELR

Share pre™iurm reserve 254,19
Profit o-ougnt forwarg 86.013
Profit/oss ' “he year -394
Total 339,138

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting 2021thatno
dividend s o be oard for fnanaal year 2020 and that the distrbgtable funds
of TEUR 339138 are brought forward

Np}imf‘ilnwtlcrzs

The corpany nrose cortaim financ al measures inths inlenm -epott inat are
net dof ned under IFRS The comiay belioves that these measures provide
useful supplemental information to Investors and the company’s managemeant
as they allow evaluation of the company's performance Because not all com-
pares calculate (mese T nandcial measares sp larly, Imese are sob glwnys co-
parable o ~“easares used sy othol companies hese fnancal ~easures
shauld not ze considered a substtute for Measures acfined under ITRS

IFRS MEASURES

Revenue

All related business revenue fiIncluding rooms reverue, food & drinks revenue,
cther hotel revenue, fee revenue anc other nan-hetel revenue from adrinis-
tration units)

Earnings per Share
Profit far te perod, befare aliccation to ~on-cortrolli=gite-esis, oivded oy
the weighted average number of shares cutstanding

Basic Average Number of Shares
Weighted average number of orainary shares cutstanding during the period

NON-IFRS MEASURES - ALTERNATIVE
PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Capital Employed

Tatal assets less interest heanng anancial assels and cash and cd-h egoiva-
lents and nen-interest bearing operaing liabilities, ~cluding pension labil-
ties, and excluding ax assets and tax habiliues

31Dec. 3 Dec
MELR 2020 2009
Total assets A] 1498 3 U943
Interest-hesr g ‘inancal assels 8 412 304
Cash & cash equiveleris C 504 2396
Non-rierest-beanrg operatirg habilimes, ircludirg
persior abiliies ara excludrg tex asse5 ard tax 403 2 4327
labilizies (D)
Capital employed [A-B-C-D] 1,003.6 491.6

EBIT

Operat ng oroflt cefore et dnancial dens anag tax

EBIT Margin
EBIT as a percentage of Revenue

EBITDA
Operat ng profit pefore dop caat oo and amorhisatis®
tonrestrectunng ef comrtdcls nel feancad] ibems arns 'ax

Lty duss 1o e na-

EBITDA Margin
EBITDA as a percentage of Revenue.

EBITDAR

Covralng prol L belore rendsl expense and share o mcome i associates.
depreaation and amortisation, Costs due to terminatien/restructucing of con-
dracts, - etfinarcal items and tax

EBITDAR Margin
EBITOAR as a percentage of Revenue

Net Cash (Debt)

Cash & cash equivalents plus shori-term interest-bearing assets {with maturity
within three montrs) minus mterest-beanng liabilihes (short-term & song-termy,
excluging lease habilbes rolrement berein obhgations as woll a» hatsl L eas
~elated to investments in holels under management contracts, for which
repayments are inked to fees collected

31Dac. 3tDer
MEUR 2020 2019
Cast & cash equivaler:s |, 504 2396
Irterest-oeannrg habiites |8’ 1.2407 2179
ease labriues C 398.8 4656 G
Reurement se et obligatinss D 48 a3
Lizbihies relaied o 'rvestrmenisin hptels urder mar-

N 46 43

3gemer: contacts [E) }
Net cash (debt) [A-8+C+D+E] =7824 -3.0
Net Interest-bearing Assets/Liabilities
Inierest-bearn~g assets mnus nterest-beanng hablities

31Dec, e
MEUR 2026 208
‘rierest-bearirg assets TA, 930 2ng
Ireresi-beanry kabrlines B 1240 7 ki
Net interest-hearing assets/Habllities [A-B] -1,147.7 -446.0

Free Cash Flow
Tolal cash fow from operating 4 cbivizies g nvesting aclviios

MELR 2020 7018
Cash flag tor it ng scivitizs A -234 ‘538
Cash thew Tomarves: ng activ s '3 -6738 -885
Free cash flow [A+B] -697.2 65.3

Net Working Capital
Imvenigry plus carrent non-interest-bearing receivables mrus current non-inter
esl beanng iabilities

31Dec. MEoe
MEUR 2020 2012
‘rventory TA 27 4Q
Curreriror irterest-beanrg receivab es (8] 1003 144 3
Currer: nor-rierest-bearrgiiabilines 'CF 2544 3068
Net working capital [A+B-C] -151.4 -158.5

Return on Capital Employed

Opetatng p efitflloss] [EBIT), excli.i~g costs due o termmato- of cootract-
and write-downs and reversa:s of write-downs divicec by average capiial
employed

MELR 2020 2018
Thnecaneyg pro Joss)iTRITY A -2"78 732
Wrte-dowrs ard reversals of wnie downs ‘B’ 670 -Xe)
Costs dug toterruranar of cortracts 'C — 09
Cupial e~p oyed, begirrirg of ihe year ' 49' 6 97
Capial Emp\uyed_ erd of :re year E] 11,0036 43‘ (]
Return nr; Capital Employed [(A+B8+C)/{{D+E}2)] -20.2% ) 25.8;



Return on Equity

Prof tfor the pe-od, attributavle 1o ecuity holders of the parest. as ape-centage

of average shareholders’ equity, excluding minorty interests

MEUR 2020 2019
Profsflassi far the genod A -2280 220
Equity, begirring of tne year (B} 148 3 1237
Equry, end of the year 'C 15 1488
Return en Equity [A/{{B+C)/2)] -303.6% 16.1%
RevPAR

Rooms revenue in relatinn 1o avalahle ronms, whereas avalable ronms g

dehined as otal roorms Fvestary less “oums not avaltache for sale

Leased nortion 2020 2019
Roors reverLe {(MEUR) [A] 1577 5489
Number of gvailabie rooms (thousards) 8, 5,604 5,56
RevPAR [A/B] ’ 281 987

OPERATING MEASURES

Average Room Rate
Average Room Rate — Rooms revenue ir relation ta number of rooms sold

This

1s alsa referred to as ARR (Average Room Rate), ADR {Average Daily Rate) or

AHR [Average House Rate) in the hotel mdustry

F&B
Food anc Beverage

FF&E
Furniture, F:ttings and Equipment

Like-for-like Hotels (“LFL")

Hotels thal have beer in operation durng all months within the current and
previous [ nancal vear compered Nomew s otels exrea holels or halels under

renovation are included

Like-for-like hotels including renovation {(“LFL&R")

Like-for-ke hotets plus hotels under renovation during the current and/or previ-

OUS LNancIEt e s Lomsare

Occupancy [%)
Number of rooms sold 1 relation to the number of rooms available for sale

Revenue LFL
Revenue for LFL hotels at constant exchange rates

Revenue LFLER
Revenue for LFLAR notels at constant exchange rates

RevPAR LFL
RevPAR for LFL hotels at constartexchange rates

RevPAR LFL&R
RevPAR for LFL&R hotels at constant exchange rates
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PARENT COMPANY, STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

___Forthe YearPnded Decemaer 31

TEUR Notes 2020 2019
Revenue 2 7,766 4,264
Persorrel cost 34 —4.541 -6.,096
Other operaurg experses = —4,269 -8153
Operating profit/{loss) hefore depreciation and amaortisation -1,044 15
Depreciatior ard amorusation expense B 90 -68 -89
Operating profit/{loss) -1,112 -85
Firgncial ncome 7 3,882 g
Firancial experses o 7 -5172 ~3
Profit/{loss) before year-end appropriations -2,402 358
Year-erd appropriauors

Group contribLtion _ 1,436 -252
Profit/loss) before tax -566 1086
IrCoMme LeEx 8 -28 o
Prafit/(loss) for the year 994 106
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENS|VE INCOME

Profit/ljoss) for the year -994 106
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive Income for the year 994 106

PARENT COMPANY, BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT

As of Decerrber 31

TEUR Notes 2020 2009
ASSETS
Non-current assets
In:angible assels 9 - -
Tangib'e asse:s kX 89
Recevables ar gro.p companies ‘2 2965000 —
Stares Ir sLbsidianes o - 322 888 236,934
817,919 237,033
Current assets
Recevahles or groLp comparies "2 5501 32,328
Accouris recevsble 20 —
CLrrert iax gssels ‘45 26
Other recevables 209 7
Prepaid experses ard accrued rcare ‘3 388 645
Cast ard cash eguiveleris 1 -
- - B 152,374 _ 33m
Total assets 770,293 270,204
ZQUTYANI L A3 . TES
Equity
Resiricted equity
Srare cepiial o "1.626 626
o - h 1,626 1,626
Non-res:rnicied equity
Skare prem Lr reserve 254,79 25419
Retained earr:rgs B86.013 -46
Profr.flosst for e yea: -994 06
. R 339,138 254179
Total equity T 350,764 265,805
Non-current liabilities
Otkerror-correr: rierest-beanryg liabilines = 15 395.000 —
' - o 395,000 -
Current liabilities
Accour:s paysble 292 435
Liabil7ies ' group corparies ‘4 197 4936
Accried expenses ard prepaid irccme G 3978 2756
Qrrer currert irterest-bearrg 3o tes 5 20.000 —
Ctrer currert liabilt es 62 272
_ - T o o 24,529 ETT
Total liabilities T 419,529 4,399
Total equity and kiabilitles T - 770,293 270204



PARENT COMPANY, STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share
Share premium Retained Net profig/loss Total

TEUR capital reserve earnings forthe year Equity
Opening balance as of Jarn 1, 2019 11,626 254,119 40 229 266,014
Allocatior of last year's resuls — — 229 -229
Lorgtermircenive programmes — — -3’5 — =315
Proftitoss) for ie yea- - B — 0 ‘06 106
Ending balance as of Dec 31, 2019 11,626 254,119 —-46 106 265,805
Allocanar of last year's result — — 106 106 —
Capizel contribut.on - — 85,953 - 85,8953
Prof L:{ias=i for ke year . — - - -994 -994
Ending balance as of Dec 31, 2020 1,626 25419 86,013 -994 350,764
Forinformaton un share capntal, slesse see Note 29 of ing consoldales irancial staiemerts

PARENT COMPANY, STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

_Fortne Year Ended DeceToer 31

TEUR Notes 2020 2019
OPERATIONS

Operatimg prof “flasst 12 55
Ad|Lstments for ror-cask items

Depreciauen ard amortsatior 8.9 68 69
inreres: paidireceved 7 -2,748 ‘3
Qther fina~cal iteans 7 5 .3
Taxes _a7

Cash flows frem operatiens hefore change in working capital -3,854 142
Charge i,

Current receivables 406 707
Currert iabilties o —1775 =37
Change in warking capltal B . _ -1,369 670
Cash flew from operating activities -5,223 812
INVESTMENTS

Borrowings ‘o subsidianes 2 -315.000 -
PLrcnase of machirery a~d equipmert o 9 - -5
Cash flow fram Investing activities -315,000 -5
FINANCING

Proceeds from borrowings 15 415,000 —
Charge ir cask poal accoLnts _ o —94 777 -807
Cash flow from financing activities 320,223 -BO7
Cash flow for the year o 4
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 ] 1
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31 1 1

FINANCIAL REPORTS, PARENT COMPANY
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Note 1 | seneral nformator

The Parent Company has prepared its Annual Repart In accordance with the
Swedish An~ual Accounts Act, RFR 2 (Accounting for legar entites) of the
Swedish Financial Accounting Standards Counci angd applicable statemerts
from its emerging 1ssues Committee Pursuant to RFR 2, iIr prepaning the
Annual Accounts for the legal entity, the Parent Companry shall apply all inter-
national Financial Reportng Standards (IFRS) and statemerts, as approved by
the European union, as far as this I1s possibie within the framework of the
Swedish Annual Accounts Act and the Act on Safeguaraing of pens:on obliga-
tons {Tryggandelagen) taking Inlc account the relatiorshio betwaen repo-ung
and taxation The Parent Company has Euro as presentation currency

The Parent Cormr pany mainly applies the principles explained in the present
Note 31 the Group accounts as in the consolidated accounts with the excep-
tior of shares in subsidiaries that are recognised at cost and the accounting of
legses The Parent Company does not apply IFRS 16 Leases

Nome of the cha~gesn RFR 2 Accoustry Tor [egal entities) efect ve for
accounbing perods seymning an January ©, 2020 Fave had any signd can
1 oanonthe fina cal stateme-ts 2020

Tne Parent Company apoaes the alternative rule in RFR 2 1AS 27 relatec to
Group contribut ons

Note 2 | revenuedisinouuen

Fortae Yeas B aded Dec 31

TELR 2020 209
Ex:erral reverve 464 1540
Revenue fram group companies _ 7,302 12724
Total ) ' 7766 15,264

Note 3 | Government grais

27 tne Yoo £ ~ded Deg_31

TFuR 2020 7019
Gove-nment ¢-ants affse’t ng nesa-nel cay” 328 —
Total 328 —

Note 4 | rersonre.

Payrolf cost _Forie Year fngee Dot 3t

TELR 2020 2019
Salanes 2,808 406"
Scoal secamny 1077 ‘473
Sersior costs 603 438
Ot er U_L"wf,“m'\ Contsquthor beniof s mking) 55 24
Total ' 4,541 6.096

These costs are ncluded n the Ine persornel cost in the Income statement
No remuneration has been paid to the Board of Directors in 2020 {TEUR 94 in

2018y Radisson nas dotned 2o Fxecutive Cormmitiee and tro CFO as key s -
agement personnel

Average number of employees

_ fis of Dee 3 .
2020 - 2019
Men Women Mon Woroen
Sweden 15 25 22 40

Infarmation re.ated to Soard members s disclosed in Note 10 of the Group
accounts

Note 5 | Other operating expenses

Fortne Yea- Ended Deg 31

TIUR 2020 209
Exierrzl secv ce fees 909 *320
O'ker exiernal expenses 1123 1,779
Expenses from g-oup compan-es 1.730 4,942
Rert ; ) 508 52
Total 4269 8153

Note 6 | audrorsiees

Fo-the Year Ended Dot 31

[EL o . 2020 7019
PwC

Arditgssigrments 418 448
Orrerassigrments o B 50 38
Total 468 486

Note 7 i Financial income and expenses

Fortne Year Ended Dec 31

TEUK 2020 7013
Interest reome from group Comparies 3,832 3
Fareign currercy excharge gans R — 7‘28_5
Financiai income ) 3,882 1416
Irieres: experse or gifer loars grd payatles -4,700 —
Fareigr curre~cy excharge losses -254 —
Cther frans ol experses -218 -3
Financlal expenses -5,172 B =3
Financlal income and expenses, net - -1,260 413
Note 8 | Tax

IFLR 2020 % 2000 %
Z-0f1 lons be‘ore Tax -966 106

Tex 8 're domes: circore iax rae -207 214 23 274
Tox effoct o' reve tue toatis pxemp from

waxanor ~7R —60

Tox cffert AT evpecars g Ate non

deduciwb‘g ir deterrur.rg w@xablercome 232 37
Recorded tax 28 1.4 - 214



Note 9 | nangule assets

Note 13 | rrepaidexpenses anc sccrued income

As of Dec 31
As of Dec 31
TELR 2020 2019
TELR 2020 2019 Prepaid rent 127 121
Cost Otrer 262 524
Balance as of January 1 176 178 Total = 388 645
rVesIments o — —
Balance as of December 31 176 176
Note 14 | Liabilities o group cempanies
Agcumulated depreciations -
Acc R . As of e 31
Balance as of January 1 = 17
e 176 6 TEUR 2020 2019
Depreciatior — —
Accounts payable 97 684
Balance as of December 31 -176 -176 T
Group conuibution L — 252
Total 197 936
Carrying amount — — —_—————_—
Note 10 ! rengivle assers ~ Note 15 | sorowngs
As of Dec 31 B Cuenths o Dec 31 Nom-curreatAs o Dec_ 31
TELR 2020 2019 2020 209 2020 2019
Cost Borrowings from
Balance as of January 1 213 208 reigied parigs 26,000 — 395,000 .=
Irvesimen:s _ 5 Total 20,000 — 395,000 —
Balance as of December 31 213 a3 In addition 1o tne above listed horrowings, the pank:ng structure for Radisson
provides a cross-border cash poaol, which the Parent Company s part of
Accumulated depreciations
Balance as of January 1 -714 —-645 1
Deprecistior 7 &g &g Nq;e 6 | Accruedexpensesand orepaid neome
Enlance as of December 31 ; ~782 -4 Aso‘Dec 3 B
o TFUR 2020 2019
Carrying amount 3 99 Vacauen pay Irci.oirg socal costs 827 706
Salarigs ard remurerationr 782 1557
. Otreraccried experses 2,570 494
Note 11 | sharesnsubsidianes :
- _ Total 3,978 2,756
As of Dec 3]
T=UR 2020 2019
! T J 1 .
Balance as of lanuary 236.934 237,249 N Ote 17 ’ Pledged assets and contingent llabilities
Crargenirvesimertin the subsidiary -
Radissor Hotel Hoidings AB B5.954 _315 _ _AsofDec 3
Balance as of December 31 322,888 236,934 TEUR 2020 2019
The change in the book value in 2019 s attributable 1o the equity based long-  £0g=d 3ssets - 32276
term -ncentive programmes The remaining outstanding 2016 programme was ~ Coningent labiliies Seebelow Nore

cancelled in 2019, see further Note 10 in the Group Accounts

Radissen Hospitality AB has the following subsidiary’

Registercd Ident ty Na o* Owned Boak
Sweden n no sha<cs snae 1% va-ug
Radissen Hotel
Holdirgs AB Siackhalm  556674-0972 ‘06.667 00 236,934
Note 12 | recewatleson group comparnies

As of Dec 31

TEUR 2020 2019
Nen-currert receivables on group companies
Irterest bearing recevables 295000 —
Currert receivables or group comparies
Irterest bearing recevables 20,000 -
Cash peot 125,982 3 .4a8
Accrued interest income 3,619 —
Group cortrbutiar 436 —
Other - . S L D)
Total 446,51 32,328

Recevables on group compames were per December 31, 2019 pledged as
security for the Group's credit faciity and bond The related credit “acility and
tond have been cancelled in 2020

The campany Issued a parent company guarantee pursuant to Article 403,
Book 2 of the Dutch Crwvil Code in respect of Raeisson Hotel Amsterdam B v
Tne company 1ssued a parent company guarantee pursuant to section 4794 of
the Companies Act 2006 of the Parliament of the United Kirgdem in respect
of Radisson Hotels UK Limited, Radisson Hotel Manchester Limited, Radisson
Hotel Stansted Limited, Radisson Hatel Leeds Limiteg, Radisson Hotet Edin-
burgh Limited, Radisson Hotel Edinburgh Collection Limited, Park Inn by
Radisson UK Limited, Park Inn by Radisson Hoteis Management Limited and
Park Inn by Radisson Hotel Heathrow Limited This means that Radsson Hos-
pitality AB declares and accepts, under reservation of legal repeal of the dec-
laration, joint and several llabilty for the debts resulting from legal acts ot
Radisson Hatel Amsterdam BV, Radisson Hotels UK Limited, Radisson Hotel
Manchester Limited, Radisson Hotel Stansted Limited, Radisson Hotel Leeds
Limited, Radisson Hote! Edinburgh Limited, Radisson Hote! Edinburgn Coile-
tion bimited, Park Inn by Radisson UK Limited, Park nn by Radisson Hotels
Management Limited and Park Inn by Radisson Hotel Heathrow Limited As
‘he probabibty 0° g setileme 1 s romote, an esumate of its fnanaal effect s not
practical te be calculated

The parent company has issued support letters to .t$ subsidianes 10 secure
ligurdity in the subsidiaries for the next twelve morths

NOTES TQO THE PARENT COMPANY
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SIGNATURES

Tne consoldated financial statements have been prepared 10
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and give a true and fair
view of the Graup’s financial position and res.lts o’ cperations. The
financial statcments of the Patent Company have boen prepared .n
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Swe-
der and give a tue and fair view of the Parent Comazany's financ al
posilion and resuits of operations.

The Beard of Direclors’ report of the Greup and the Parent
Company provides a fair review of the development of the Group’s
and the Parent Company's aperaions, iz~ cal pesitior and results
of operations and describes matenal risks and uncertaintes facing
the Parent Company and companies includec in the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the annual general meeting of the shareholders of Radisson Hospitality AB

Corporate identity number 556674-0964

Report on the annual accounts and consolidated accounts
Opinions

We nave audited the annual accounts and consosdated accounis of
Radisson Hospitatity AB for the year 2020

In our opinion, the annual accounts have been prepared in accerd-
ance with the Annual Accounts Act and present farrly, in all materia
respects, the finarcal cosition of parent company and the group 23
of 31 December 2020 and its financial performance and cash flow fo-
the year then ended in accordance with the Annual Accounis Act.
The consolidated accounis Nave been prepdred in accordance with
the Annual Accounts Act and present fairly, in ali material respects,
tne fi-ancial cosition of the group as of 21 Dece—oer 2020 and ther
fimancial performance ard cash flaw for the year tren endel In
accordance with Internationa: Financial Reporting Standards {(IFRS),
as adopted by the EU, and the Annual Accounts Act. The statuiory
administration report is consistent wilth the other parts of the annual
accounts and consohidated accounts.

We therefore recommend that the general meeting of sharebald-
ers adopts the income statement and balance sheet for the parent
company anc the group.

Bosis for opintons

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (ISA) and generally accepted audiling standards 1in Swe-
den Qurresponsbilities urder those standards are further described
n the Auchtar's Responsibilities section. We are indeperdent of the
parent company and the group In accordance with prefessional eth-
wes for accoontants in Sweden and have otherwise fulfilled our cthical
responsibrities in accordance with these requirements

We believe that the audt evide~ce we have oblanes s sufficient
and apprepriale (0 provide a basis for our opinions,

Responsibiiities of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director

The Board of Directors and the Maraging Director are responsible
for the preparation of the annual accounts and consolidated ac-
counls and that they give a fair presentation in accordance with the
Annual Accounts Acl and, concerning the consolidatled accounts, in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU. The Board of Directors
and the Managing Director are also responsible for such internal
control as they determine 15 necessary to enable the preparation
of annual accounts and consolidated accounts that are free from
materal misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error.

In oreparing the annual accounts and consolidated accounts, The
Board of Directors and the Managing Director are responsible for the
assessment of the company's and the group's ability to continue as a
gaing concern. They disclose, as applicable, matters related o going
concern and wsing the going concern basis of acceunting. The going
concern basis of accounting is however not applied il the Board of
Directors and the Managing Director iIntend to liquidate the compary,
to cease operations, or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auctitor’s responsibility

Qur ohiectives are to oblain regsonable assurance about whether the
annual accounts and consolidated accounts as a whole are free from
matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar, and to issue an
audior's report that includes cur opinicns. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, bulis not a guarantee that ar audit conduct-
ed in accordance with 1SAs and generally accepted auditng stand-
ards in Sweden will always detecl a materal misstatement when it ex-
ists Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considereg
maternal If, individualty or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expocted to influence the econonic deasions af users ta<en on tre
asis of these annua accounts and conselidated accounts,

A further description of our responsitility for the audit of the
annual accounts and consohidated accounts is available on Rewi-
sorsinspektionen’s webisile, www.revisorsirspektionen.se/revisorn-
sansvar. This descriction is part of the aud:tor’s report.

Report on other legal and reguiatory requirements
Opinions

In addition 10 qur aadit of the annual accounts and corsolidated ac-
counts, we have also audited the administratior of the Board of Di-
rector's and the Managirg Director of Radissen Hospitality AB for the
year 2020 and tnc proposed appropriations of the company’s profit
or 1055,

We recommend Lo the general meeting of shareholders that the
profit be appropnated n accorda~ce wit~ the pronosal in tre statu-
tory administration report and thal the members of the Board of Direc-
lor's and the Managing Director be d'scharged lrom liabilty for the
fnanc al year

Basrs for opinions

We conducted the audit in accordance with generally accepted audit-
Ing standards in Sweden. Our responsiblities under those standards
are further descnbed in the Auditaor's Responsibiht es seclion We are
independent of the parert company and the group in accordance
with professional ethics for accountants in Sweden and have olher
wise f.lfillec our ethica! responsiziities In accordance with these re-
quirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamed 1s sufficie~t
and appropriate 10 provide a asis for our opinions,

Responsibiities of the Board of Directors ond the Manoging Director

The Board of Directlors is responsible for the proposal for appropri-
atiors of the campany’s prafit or loss At tho proposal of a dwviaend,
th s inclLdes ar assessme-t of whethet the dividenc 15 jusufable
considering the requirements which the company's and the group’s
type of operalions, size and risks place on the size of the parent
company’'s and the group’ equity, consolidation requirements, li-
quidity and position in general.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the company’s organiza-
tiom and the adminstraticn of tre company’s affais. This includes
among other things conlinucus assessment of Ihe company's and the
growp’s finencial situalion and ensuring that the company’s organiZza-
ton I1s desigred so thal the accounting, management of assets and
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the company's financial affairs otherwise sre controlled n a reassur-
ing manner. The Managing Director shall manage the ongoing admin-
istration according to the Board of Directors’ guidelines and instruc-
tions and amang other matters take measures thal are necessary to
fulfill the company’s accounting in accordance with law and handle
the management of assets in a reassuring manner,

Auditor’s responsibility

Our objeclive concerning the audit of the administration, and there-
by our opinion about discharge from lability, 15 10 obtain audit ev-
idence to assess with a reasonable degree of assurance whether
any member of the Board of Direciors or the Managing Director in
any maleral respect.

= has undertaken any action or been guilty of any omission which
can give rise Lo liabity to the company, or

= in any other way has acted in contrgvention of the Companies
Act, the Annual Accounts Act or the Articles of Association.

Cur objecuve concerning the audit of the proposed appropria-
tions of the company’s profit or loss, and thereby our opinien about
this, 15 1o assess with reasonable degree of assurance whether the
propesal is in accordance with the Companies Act.

Reasonable assurance 1s @ high level of assurance, but s not @
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
acceptled auditng standards in Sweden will always detect aclicns or
omissions that can give nise to liatniity to the campany. or that the
proposed approerations of tne company’s profit or loss are not 10
accordance with the Companies Act

A further description of aur responsibility for the audit of the admin-
Istration 1s available on Revisorsinspeklionen's website: www.rewvi-
sorsinspeklionen.sefrevisornsansvar. This description is parl of the
auditor's report.

Stockhoim June 24, 2021

PricewaterhouseCoopers AB

Erc¢ Salander
Authorised Public Accountant
Auditor in Charge
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